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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile
and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is
arisk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take
no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Natural
Investment Company Limited (the “Company’”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best
of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report
is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements” page
of the GEM website at http.//www.hkgem.com for at least seven days
from the date of publication and on the website of the Company at
http.//www.chinanatural.com.hk.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2011 (the "Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Pleasant financial results were driven by a full year of active financial
planning and strategic management. In light of the improving
economy, the Group has made use of this opportunity to broaden
its business scope by acquiring well-established companies and
properties in the prime locations that will bring high returns to our
shareholders.

Manufacturing and Sale of Pharmaceutical Products Business
In recent years, the demand for pharmaceutical products and health
supplements keeps surging. In view of that, the Group took a large step
forward to re-enter the local healthcare and pharmaceutical markets
by acquiring Island Kingdom Company Limited (“Island Kingdom”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Island Kingdom Group”) which operate a
Good Manufacturing Practice certified factory in Hong Kong. The
Island Kingdom Group mainly manufactures and supplies western
pharmaceutical products such as remedies for cold and flu, cough,
fever and skin infection to doctors and the Hospital Authority in
Hong Kong. The Island Kingdom Group also engages in the marketing
and sale of health supplements. During the Year, the manufacturing
and sale of pharmaceutical products business recorded revenue of
approximately HK$24,888,000, accounted for 59.39% of the Group's
total revenue.

With this acquisition, the Group can benefit from participating in an
all-rounded process in the pharmaceutical industry. Nevertheless, the
Group has foreseen the challenges to be faced ahead with respect
to the new licensing requirement and will review the development
strategy in this segment from time to time.

Remarkable Results from Investments Segment

1) Property Market Investment
Taking advantage of the prospering property market, the
Group has been actively participating in building its property
investment portfolio for the Year. In addition, the renewal of
rental contracts with increased rents contributed higher return
on investment. For the Year, the rental income generated by
the investment properties is approximately HK$3,568,000.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

In September 2010, the Group announced the acquisition of
the public carpark nos. P101-P150 together with the shroff's
office on 1st Floor, Citimark, No.28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong for HK$17,300,000. In the first
quarter of 2011, the Group acquired a property for commercial
use which is located at Shop No. 21, Ground Floor, Grandway
Garden, No.16 Mei Tin Road and Nos.15 and 35 Tsuen Nam
Road, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong at a consideration
of HK$40,427,000. Most recently, in June 2011, the Group
announced its acquisition of a property for commercial use
located at Flat K, 9th Floor, Champion Building, Nos. 301-
309 Nathan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong at a consideration
of HK$15,500,000. These investments are expected to deliver
stable rental income and bring valuation gains for the
Group.

2) Asset Investment-Related Business
To fully utilize our resources as well as diversifying our
investment portfolio, the Group also invests in listed and
unlisted securities in Hong Kong. With our professional
investment team and prudent investment strategy, the Group
recorded a gain arising on change in fair value of financial
assets of approximately HK$7,149,000.

Strengthening of Advertising and Public Relations Business
With the booming economy in both Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China, there is a growing demand for public relations
services. In January 2011, the Group acquired PR ASIA Consultants
Limited ("PR ASIA"), a Hong Kong-based public relations company
focusing on financial communications. Since its establishment in
2001, PR ASIA has been providing strategic consulting services in
corporate communications, media relations, investor relations, issue/
crisis management, media training and event management to different
clients including Hong Kong listed companies, private banks, quasi-
government bodies and multinational corporations headquartered in
major cities around the world. On the strength of its good reputation
and rich experience, the Group is confident that PR ASIA would gain
the momentum to expand its market share in the near future and
generate pleasing results for our shareholders. For the Year, the Group’s
provision of advertising and public relations business achieved revenue
of approximately HK$11,011,000, accounted for 26.28% of the Group's
total revenue.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, in view of the recent economic fluctuations, the
Group will maintain its prudent and diversifying investment strategy
in order to protect the interests of our shareholders. Along with a
team of sophisticated management professionals, the Group will
continue to seek new investment opportunities in various fields and
strive to enhance our current investment portfolio by identifying
potential business opportunities so as to generate great returns for
the Group.

The acquisition of PR ASIA represents a strategic opportunity to
strengthen our presence in the advertising and public relations field.
Hong Kong is keeping abreast with the international finance affairs
and the attraction of substantial global investment. This advantage
will further fuel the demand for the finance consultation services in
the years ahead. We expect the growth to be driven by leveraging the
professional services to the customers in the active corporate finance
activities and IPO projects in Hong Kong.

Lastly, the Board would like to express sincere gratitude and
appreciation to all staff for their excellent contributions and thank our
shareholders for their strong support and confidence in the Group.

U Man long
Chairman
22 September 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE T wm kAT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the Year, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$41,903,000, representing an increase of 790.76% compared with
the previous year.

Gross profit for the Year was approximately HK$19,127,000, representing
an increase of 689.03% compared with the previous year.

Basic loss per share was HKO.7 cents (2010: HK0.7 cents).

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$4,443,000 (2010: HK$1,456,000). The loss was mainly
due to the impairment losses recognized in respect of goodwill which
arose from the acquisition of the Island Kingdom Group during the
Year. Nevertheless, the aforesaid impairment losses are non-cash in
nature and do not have any cash flow impact on the Group.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the Year, the Group acquired two groups of companies whose
principal activities are (i) manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical
products and (ii) provision of advertising and public relations services
respectively. Revenue from manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical
products, and provision of advertising and public relations services
for the Year were approximately HK$24,888,000 and HK$11,011,000
respectively.

For the Year, the property and asset investments markets enjoyed
strong growth. The Group recorded rental income generated by the
investment properties of approximately HK$3,568,000 and enjoyed
valuation gains from the investment properties of approximately
HK$10,891,000.

The Group recorded a gain arising on change in fair value of financial

assets classified as held for trading of approximately HKS$7,149,000
for the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B A am Mo AT

The Group’s revenue represents revenue arising on three main
segments of business, namely (i) provision of diagnostic testing
and healthcare services, manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical
products; (i) provision of advertising and public relations services; and
(iii) property and asset investment. Riding on the steady economic
growth in Hong Kong, provision of high quality products and services,
together with the Group’s vision on prudent business acquisition and
strong investment portfolio management, we believe that the prudent
investment strategy will create value for our shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2011, the Group held cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$68,900,000 (2010: HK$42,973,000). Net current assets
amounted to approximately HK$109,698,000 (2010: HK$84,745,000).

Asat 30 June 2011, current ratio (defined as total current assets divided
by total current liabilities) was 8.37 times (2010: 71.78 times). Gearing
ratio, expressed as a percentage of total liabilities over total assets was
approximately 0.06 (2010: 0.01).

The Group had no bank borrowing as at 30 June 2011 (2010: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2011, total equity attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$289,315,000 (2010: HK$145,943,000).

On 20 April 2010, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with a placing agent pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to place, through the placing agent and on a best effort basis,
a maximum of 243,000,000 new shares at a placing price of HK$0.43
per share to not fewer than six independent placees under a specific
mandate (the“"SM Placing I). On 7 July 2010, the Company entered into
a supplemental placing agreement with the placing agent pursuant
to which the placing price was revised to HK$0.22 per share. Details
were disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 20 April
2010 and 7 July 2010 respectively. The SM Placing | was completed
on 17 September 2010.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE T wm kAT

On 24 November 2010, the Company entered into two placing
agreements with a placing agent pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to place, through the placing agent and on a
best effort basis, (i) a maximum of 100,400,000 new shares at a placing
price of HK$0.165 per share to not fewer than six independent placees
under a general mandate (the “GM Placing”); and (i) a maximum of
505,700,000 new shares at a placing price of HK$0.165 per share to not
fewer than six independent placees under a specific mandate (the “SM
Placing II") respectively. Details were disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 3 December 2010. The GM Placing and the
SM Placing Il were completed on 16 December 2010 and 16 March
2011 respectively.

Forfuture expansion and development of the Group, the Board proposed
an increase in the authorised share capital of the Company from
HK$50,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 shares to HK$500,000,000
divided into 10,000,000,000 shares by creating additional 9,000,000,000
shares. Details were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 24 December 2010. Such increase in authorised share capital
was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 17 January 2011.

EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the trading transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. It is the Group's policy for its
operating entities to operate in their corresponding local currencies to
minimize currency risks. The Group had an insignificant exchange risk
exposure since the principal businesses were conducted and recorded
in Hong Kong dollars during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS

For the Year, the Group had the following significant investments and
acquisitions:

(i) On 9 September 2010, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement for the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Island Kingdom, and all the shareholder’s
loans to Island Kingdom and its subsidiary, at an aggregate
cash consideration of HK$21,500,000. The above acquisition
constituted a very substantial acquisition for the Company
under the GEM Listing Rules and was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on T November 2010. Details
of the above acquisition were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 9 September 2010 and the Company’s
circular dated 15 October 2010 respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B A am Mo AT

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

On 27 September 2010, the Group announced the
acquisition of the public carpark nos.P101-P150 together
with shroff’s office on 1st Floor, Citimark, No.28 Yuen Shun
Circuit, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong at a consideration
of HK$17,300,000. Details were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 27 September 2010.

On 11 November 2010, the Group announced the acquisition
of Shop No.G12, Ground Floor, Commercial Podium, Sincere
House, No.83 Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong at a
consideration of HK$17,460,000. Details were disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 11 November 2010.

On 24 November 2010, the Group entered into two sale and
purchase agreements for the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of PR ASIA, at an aggregate cash consideration of
HK$33,600,000. PR ASIA is a Hong Kong-based public relations
company focusing on financial communications. The above
acquisition constituted a very substantial acquisition for the
Company under the GEM Listing Rules and was approved
by the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 17 January 2011.
Details of the above acquisition were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 3 December 2010 and the Company’s
circular dated 31 December 2010 respectively.

On 30 March 2011, the Group announced the acquisition
of Shop No.21, Ground Floor, Grandway Garden, No.16 Mei
Tin Road and Nos.15 and 35 Tsuen Nam Road, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong at a consideration of HK$40,427,000.
Details were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
30 March 2011.

On 30 June 2011, the Group announced the acquisition of
Flat K, 9th Floor, Champion Building, Nos.301-309 Nathan Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong at a consideration of HKS$15,500,000.
Details were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
30 June 2011.

(iff)

(vi)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE T wm kAT

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had no significant capital commitment.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 30 June 2011, none of the assets of the Group were pledged as
security for any banking facilities.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
As at 30 June 2011, there were 129 staff members (2010: 8) employed
by the Group.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on industry
practices and their respective educational background, experience and
performance. On top of the regular remuneration and discretionary
bonus, share options may be granted to selected employees
by reference to the Group's performance as well as individual's
performance. In addition, each employee enjoys mandatory provident
fund, medical allowance and other fringe benefits.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2011, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EEZNEREEEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. U Man long, aged 46, joined the Company as an executive Director
on 30 September 2009 and was appointed as the chairman of the
Company on 11 November 2009. He has over 25 years of experience
in sales of pharmaceutical or medical products and management of
companies in these fields in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. U has
been the President and General Manager of 1t R &5 R E 2 ¥
FTFT (unofficial English translation being Beijing Qiyuan Health Care
Pharmaceutical Institute) since January 2003 and had been elected
the director of 1t R E2& (unofficial English translation being Beijing
Pharmic Association). Mr. U had attended various training courses of
law related subjects organised by the Beijing Industrial and Commercial
Administrative Association.

Mr. Li Wai Hung, aged 49, joined the Company as an executive
Director on 30 September 2009 and was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company on 2 August 2010. Mr. Li is also a
director of certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. He
has over 21 years of experience in sales related works and held senior
positions in various companies.

Mr. Chow KaiWah, Gary, aged 56, joined the Company as an executive
Directoron 11 November 2009. He is the chairman of the remuneration
committee, the compliance officer, an authorized representative of
the Company for the purpose of the GEM Listing Rules and an agent
of the Company to accept service of process for and on behalf of the
Company for the purpose of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). He is also a director of certain wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chow graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences majoring in
economics, accounting and business studies. Since graduation, he
has been holding various senior executive positions in a number of
multinational corporations and has been involved in the sales and
marketing of a wide range of consumer products across Asia. In the
past 21 years, Mr. Chow has been assuming an entrepreneur’s role
by running his own companies encompassing different businesses
from trading, distribution, marketing, management consultancy and
investment.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EZNEREEEREE

Ms. Wu Mei Chu, aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director on
17 February 2011. She is a director of certain wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company and the general manager of a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. Ms. Wu graduated from The University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor Degree in Arts. Ms.Wu has over 20 years of experience
in marketing and business development in the People’s Republic of
China and Asia Pacific region. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Wu
had worked as an area manager at an international telecom mobile
communications company for 7 years and had been responsible for
the development of the distribution network of the company in Asian
markets including the People’s Republic of China. Ms. Wu is the spouse
of Mr. Ling Wai Hoi, a director of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Yip Man, Norman, aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 September 2009. He is the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan
has extensive experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management in a number of listed and unlisted companies. He is
currently the sole proprietor of a firm of Certified Public Accountants
and is an appointed member of the Shatin District Council.

Mr. Hui Sin Kwong, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 September 2009. He is a member of the audit
committee of the Company. He has almost 21 years of experience in
the building and construction industry in Hong Kong.

Mr. Leung Chi Kin, aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 27 November 2009. He is a member of
the audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company. He is currently an elected member of the Shatin
District Council. He is devoted to community welfare work and has
been the committee member or chairman of various social groups.
Mr. Leung was also awarded a Medal of Honour by the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. He was an independent non-executive
director of Apollo Solar Energy Technology Holdings Limited (formerly
known as RBI Holdings Limited) (stock code: 566) during the period
from 1 May 2008 to 25 November 2009.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EEZNEREEEREE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ling Koon Wah, aged 55, the managing director of a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Ling has worked in the financial
media industry for over 30 years and has in-depth experience and
extensive network in the financial media industry. Mr. Ling is mainly
responsible for the management of the operation of the public
relations business.

Mr. Leung Pak Hou Anson, aged 45, currently the chief executive
officer of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Leung
is mainly responsible for the management of the operation of the
manufacturing and sale of generic western medicines. Mr. Leung
possesses a Bachelor Degree in Commerce from the University of
Newcastle, Australia, as well as a Master of Business Administration
Degree from the University of Western Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has
over 9 years' experience in the pharmaceutical industry.

Ms. Chan Lai Yee joined the Group in February 2008. She is the
financial controller and company secretary of the Company. Ms.
Chan holds a Master's Degree in professional accounting from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Ms. Chan has over 11 years of experience in the field of accounting
and financial management and previously worked in a number of
listed and unlisted groups.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRE

The Board is committed to maintaining a good corporate governance
standard. The Board believes that a good corporate governance
standard will provide a framework for the Group to formulate the
business strategies and policies, and manage the associated risks
through effective internal control procedures. It will also enhance the
transparency of the Group and strengthen the accountability to the
shareholders and creditors of the Company.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Company endeavours in maintaining good standard of corporate
governance for the enhancement of shareholders’value. The Company
has applied the principles of and complied with the code provisions in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct
of the Company regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiry of all the Directors, and the
Directors have complied with the required standard of dealings and
the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises seven
members, four of which are executive Directors, namely Mr. U Man long
(the chairman of the Company), Mr. Li Wai Hung, Mr. Chow Kai Wah,
Gary and Ms. Wu Mei Chu. The other three members are independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Yip Man, Norman, Mr. Hui
Sin Kwong and Mr. Leung Chi Kin. The biographical details of the
Directors are set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 12 to 14 of this annual report.

The Board held four regular board meetings during the Year. The
Board is responsible for determining the overall strategy; reviewing
and approving the work plan of the Group; and overseeing the
corporate governance of the Group. The management of the Company
is responsible for proposing and implementing the work plan of
the Group, executing the day-to-day operation of the Group and
undertaking any further responsibility as delegated by the Board from
time to time. The independent non-executive Directors provide their
professional advices to the Group whenever necessary.
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Composition of the Board, (including names of the independent non-
executive Directors), is disclosed in all corporate communications to
shareholders of the Company.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information
and accounts of the Group. The Directors may seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the expense of
the Company. The Company will, upon request, provide separate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist them to
discharge their duties to the Company. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover for the Directors.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) among members of the Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. U Man long is the chairman of the Company and Mr. Wu Kai was the
chief executive officer of the Company until 1 August 2010. Mr. Li Wai
Hung became the chief executive officer of the Company on 2 August
2010. The chairman and the chief executive officer have segregated
and clearly defined roles. The chairman provides leadership for the
Board. The chief executive officer has responsibility for the Group's
overall business and development strategies, and daily management
generally.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has three
independent non-executive Directors, one of them has appropriate
professional or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. Based on such
confirmation, the Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a specific term of one year.
They are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company at least once every three years in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “‘Remuneration
Committee”) was established with specific terms of reference.
The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on policies and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration.

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Chan Yip Man, Norman and Mr. Leung Chi Kin, and one executive
Director, namely Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary who is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year
and reviewed the remuneration policy of the Company, assessed the
performance of the executive Directors and senior management and
recommended specific remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management to the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with the
GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review the Company’s annual report and accounts, interim reports
and quarterly reports and to provide advice and comments thereon
to the Board. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing
and supervising the Group’s financial reporting and internal control
procedures.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Yip Man,
Norman, Mr. Hui Sin Kwong and Mr. Leung Chi Kin. Mr. Chan Yip Man,
Norman is the chairman of the Audit Committee since his appointment
on 30 September 2009.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year. One of the
meetings was attended by the Company’s external auditors so that
the members of the Audit Committee could exchange their views and
concerns with the auditors.
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The Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s quarterly reports for the
three months and nine months ended 30 September 2010 and 31
March 2011 respectively, interim report for the six months ended 31
December 2010 and the Group's audited annual results for the Year.
The Audit Committee also made recommendations to the Board and
the management in respect of the Group's financial reporting and
internal control procedures.

DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION

The Company has not established a nomination committee. The
Board as a whole is responsible for the procedure of agreeing to
the appointment of its members and for nominating appropriate
person for election by the shareholders of the Company at the general
meeting, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board.
In considering the appointment of a new Director, the Board will take
into account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership
and professional ethics of the candidates.

According to the articles of association of the Company, any Director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election
at such meeting.

A circular containing biographical details of all Directors proposed
to be elected or re-elected at the general meeting and the notice of
general meeting will be sent to the shareholders of the Company to
enable the shareholders to make an informed decision on election
or re-election of Directors.
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ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS

The attendance of the Directors at the meetings of the Board, the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee during the Year,
on a named basis, is set out in the following table:

ESHESRNHER
EENAEELRESS  ERRBENFHEES
FERIHLERARAZHAENTX

Number of meetings
attended/eligible to attend

HEAERHEERRE

Audit Remuneration
Name of Director Board Committee Committee
EEpgE Exg EREES FHESS
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. U Man long (Chairman) FXBREEE) 4/4 - -
Mr. Li Wai Hung (Chief Executive Officer) TEBISE (TTHAEZ) 4/4 - -
Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary ARSI E 4/4 - N
Ms. Wu Mei Chu [GES S n 1/1 - -
(appointed on 17 February 2011) (R2011E2 817 HEZ(T)
Mr. Wu Kai RSx4t - - -
(resigned with effect from 2 August 2010) (FH20109F8 A2 A REFFIE)
Independent Non-Executive Directors &Y FEHTES
Mr. Chan Yip Man, Norman PRSI 4/4 4/4 1/1
Mr. Hui Sin Kwong FERLAE 4/4 4/4 -
Mr. Leung Chi Kin REREE 4/4 4/4 Il
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION 1 B B 5 B

The auditors, Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, provide both
statutory audit and non-audit services to the Group. For the Year, fee
for statutory audit for the Group amounted to HK$480,000. Non-audit
services include reporting on certain information included in the
Company’s circulars issued during the Year. Total fee paid by the Group
for non-audit services during the Year was HK$653,000.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
for the Year. The Directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis, and have selected appropriate
accounting policies and applied them consistently, with applicable
disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules and pursuant to the
relevant statutory requirements.
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The statement issued by the auditors of the Company, Messrs. HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng, regarding their reporting responsibilities is set
out in the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages
27 to 28 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for internal control of the
Group, including risk management, and sets appropriate policies
having regard to the objectives of the Group. The Board, through the
Audit Committee, has continued to review the effectiveness of the
Group's system of financial and non-financial controls. The system of
internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
Controls are monitored by management review.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company provides information in relation to the Group to its
shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
including quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars. Such published documents together with the corporate
information of the Group are also available on the Company’s
website.

During the Year, separate resolutions were proposed at the general
meetings of the Company for each substantial issue, including the
re-election of Directors.

The chairman of the meeting explained the procedures for conducting
a poll at the beginning of each general meeting of the Company held
during the Year. The results of the poll were published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements. An analysis of the Group's operations for the
Year by business activities is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 29 of this annual
report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
Year (2010: Nil).

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of acquisition of subsidiaries during the Year are set outin note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Particulars of investment properties of the Group are set out in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 111 of this annual
report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2011, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to its shareholders comprised the share premium and accumulated
losses which in aggregate amounted to HK$231,513,044 (2010:
HK$124,457,872). Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to its shareholders subject to the provisions
of its memorandum and articles of association and provided that
immediately following the payment of distributions or dividends,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. In accordance with the Company’s articles of
association, dividends shall be payable out of the profits or other
reserves, including the share premium account, of the Company.

SHARE OPTIONS
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note
27 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. U Man long (Chairman)
Mr. Li Wai Hung (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary
Ms. Wu Mei Chu
(appointed on 17 February 2011)
Mr. Wu Kai
(resigned with effect from 2 August 2010)
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Yip Man, Norman

Mr. Hui Sin Kwong

Mr. Leung Chi Kin

In accordance with article 112 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. U Man long and Mr. Hui Sin Kwong will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Mr. U Man
long, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election as an executive
Director at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Due to his other business commitments, Mr. Hui Sin Kwong will not
offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with article 95 of the articles of association of the
Company, Ms. Wu Mei Chu shall hold office until the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. Due to her other business
commitments, Ms. Wu Mei Chu will not offer herself for re-election.

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report are set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 12 to 14 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of emoluments of Directors and the five highest paid individuals
of the Group are set outin notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Chan Yip Man, Norman, Mr. Leung Chi Kin and Mr. Hui Sin Kwong
have been appointed as independent non-executive Directors for a
term of one year expiring on 29 September 2012, 26 November 2011
and 29 September 2012 respectively. Their appointments are subject
to retirement by rotation and other related provisions as stipulated
in the articles of association of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS EERSERITHRAERKS - HEAKRSL K
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING fERERzEmKKR

SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors 7201156 A30R * EFRAR AR ZHRITHRAER
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares 7R 22 Al st B AL [ i8R LB (F & R E H L E &P
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations ([ &% REIE KM 1) EXVER) 2 Bty - MG RE
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance 18 P HEB AR BIRIEE 5 KB RPIE35216A T
(the “SFO"), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the ~FEZ ELMPTrCek - FREAIZER EHRAIE546
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified ~ Z5.671&PIRIM 2 EFHEITREF R H 2 W FIREMA
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required — FHE AN G KB A P2 s oK BN -

standard of dealings in securities by the Directors as referred to in

Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the RAQXRRYD - HERG R EEE 2R

Company
Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each of the Company: ~ RANR AFAKEE0.058 T2 iRk 2 IR :

Approximate %

of the Company'’s

issued share

Number of issued capital as at

Name of Director Capacity shares held 30 June 2011

EEIAE)

20116 A30H

EBITRE

e RITROBE ZERNBE DL

Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary Beneficial owner 18,000 0.00%
EREE 4 EnEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2011, none of the Directors or & F3TFTHEEE SN » HW2011F6 H30H @ HEE=K
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions A& A& 2 ZHEITHA B R AN 73 (A 85 £ EF
in the shares or underlying shares or debentures of the Company (& B35 RIS IEA BXVER) 2 I3 H RAB IR 5
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV o (B 4 2 B AT AR AN 2 TR B T MR 0
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the SR AT EE Y EAMA - SRS AR e

Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to - . RN
s lgz@ @ INTE b 2 A e 7m o
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 SRS ACES.67 IR AN TN B S PR WA

oAl
of the GEM Listing Rules. IRTE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND FERFRRRHREEKRNG 2EmR KR
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 30 June 2011, the Company has not been notified by any person 7201146 A30H * AR AW EEETRAL(EER
(other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company) who — ZAR B S HITIA BB IN) BEIEH RN T 2 R H sk
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the  }8RFI& 1) b A B L4 R IR IE 75 55 I HI & 16451 55336
Company which are required to be recorded in the register maintained (KB FHAAFIEE 2 B DM I A AR o

by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers is less than 30% of the Group's total turnover. The
five largest suppliers and the largest supplier of the Group accounted
for approximately 18% and 5% of the Group's total purchases
respectively.

During the Year, none of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the top five customers and suppliers of the Group.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors or controlling shareholders of
the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or any of their
respective associates had any interest in a business which competes
or may compete with the business of the Group or had or might have
any conflicts of interest with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’and chief executives’
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures”on page 24 of this annual report and“Share-based payment
transactions” in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements, at
no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF

was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 15 to 20 of this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the senior management of the Group is set
up by the remuneration committee of the Company with reference
to their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Company, having regard to the Company's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors, employees and other eligible participants. Details of
the scheme are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as at the date of this annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of significant event occurring after the reporting period are set
out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

On 28 June 2010, RSM Nelson Wheeler resigned as the auditors of the
Company and HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng were appointed by the
Board as auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy following
the resignation of RSM Nelson Wheeler. Save as disclosed above, there
have been no other changes of auditors in the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have
been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, who will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board

Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 22 September 2011
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Independent Auditors' Report
JE N A% BB R

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

B # & 3t & £ % 5

Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA NATURAL INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Natural Investment Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
29to 110, which comprise the consolidated and company statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2011, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors' Report
TN AZ BREN R

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
30 June 2011 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 September 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AN

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

Revenue

Cost of sales and services provided

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Other operating expenses

Gain arising on change in fair value
of financial assets classified
as held for trading

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Gain arising on change in fair value
of investment properties

Impairment losses recognized
in respect of goodwill

Loss before tax

Income tax expense

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year
attributable to owners
of the Company

Dividends

Loss per share

Basic (HK cents per share)

Diluted (HK cents per share)
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SEAREEELMAEE
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HREBERERRERE

R R 1R
PSR

RRBFEEABIEARFRE
BiEREEARX
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BREE
EA (BB

By (BBl

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
HZE20115F HZE2010F
6H30H 6H30H
LFE LEFE

HKS$ HKS

BT BIT
(restated)

(&EF)

41,903,291 4,704,192
(22,776,507) (2,280,095)
19,126,784 2,424,097
156,885 435,624
(5,155,505) -
(20,629,730) (12,135,193)
- (331,041)
(5,257,483) (16,752,288)
7,148,609 22,238,798

- 3,010,697
10,890,567 16,950
(7,125,121) -
(844,994) (1,092,356)
(3,598,439) (363,649)
(4,443,433) (1,456,005)
(0.7) (0.7)
N/ATE A 0.7)




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BIRE

As at 30 June 2011
7201146 A30H

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and W% - BB R&E

equipment 14
Investment properties REMF 15
Goodwill kS 16
Current assets hREBEE
Trade and other receivables &5 & H b EUEIE 17
Held-for-trading investments 5 {EEBHE 18
Inventories e 19
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHET 20
Current liabilities nEBaE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMER IR 21
Tax payable JEIHHIE
Net current assets REBEEFE
Total assets less current EEAERABERS

liabilities
Non-current liabilities FrRBEME
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBRE 25
Net assets BEEFE
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital B 22
Reserves i 24

Total equity attributable to 7~ R)#EH A Eh#ER
owners of the Company  #%

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized
for issue by the Board on 22 September 2011 and are signed on its
behalf by:

Mr. Li Wai Hung
TEBELE
Director

EF

As at As at As at

30 June 30 June 1 July
2011 2010 2009
20114 20105 20095
6H30H 6H30H8 7A1H
HK$ HKS HKS

BT BIT BT
(restated) (restated)

(/25E7) (K2 E7)

7,440,295 5,762,087 1,907,730
149,240,000 55,800,000 -
26,261,838 - -
182,942,133 61,562,087 1,907,730
20,261,683 4,425,542 11,467,771
30,086,292 38,543,793 25,436,887
5,335,280 - -
68,900,061 42,972,539 52,926,051
124,583,316 85,941,874 89,830,709
13,325,753 1,197,353 1,883,786
1,559,761 - -
14,885,514 1,197,353 1,883,786
109,697,802 84,744,521 87,946,923
292,639,935 146,306,608 89,854,653
3,325,348 363,649 -
289,314,587 145,942,959 89,854,653
55,416,745 12,961,745 8,836,745
233,897,842 132,981,214 81,017,908
289,314,587 145,942,959 89,854,653

BEEGN201FIOA2BERERRES S M BEREKT
o WHIATATRRESE :

Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary

BERE

Director

EF
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Statement of Financial Position

AR BRI TEAR IR

As at 30 June 2011
7201146 A30H

Non-current assets
Investments in
subsidiaries, at cost

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Held-for-trading investments
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Amount due to a subsidiary
Other payables and accruals

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity
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of the Company

23

23
18
17
20

23

22
24(b)

As at
30 June 2011
A20115F

6H30H
HK$
BT

As at

30 June 2010
20104
6H30H
HKS

BT

780 780
276,119,127 133,241,631
9,991,292 9,039,993
207,300 192,667
2,140,546 1,870,130
288,458,265 144,344,421
= 188,455

691,961 345,086
691,961 533,541
287,766,304 143,810,880
287,767,084 143,811,660
55,416,745 12,961,745
232,350,339 130,849,915
287,767,084 143,811,660




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B ARRBER

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

Total equity

attributable

Share to owners

Share Share options Accumulated of the
capital premium reserve losses  Company

RAF

i) R it HEAEL
B e e B  ERAE
HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
(Note 24) (Note 24)
(Psk24)  (BI5E24)

Balance as at 1 July 2009 200957 A 18 2 &4 8,836,745 143,110,423 837,295 (629298100 89,854,653
Loss and total comprehensive FEBEREEBRY

expense for the year - - - (1,456,005)  (1,456,005)
Issue of shares by way FREMETZIRM

of placements 3,700,000 34,970,918 - - 38670918
Issue of shares upon exercise TR RE AR AT 31T 2 IR 1D

of share options 425,000 9,350,000 = = 9,775,000
Recognition of equity-settled TR AR EE AR D

share-based payments RER 2K - - 9098393 - 9098393
Transfer of reserve upon exercise IR e 2 RS

of share options - 3,543,645 (3,543,645) = =
Balance as at 30 June 2010 20106 A308 &

and 1 July 2010 201057R18 2 &8 12,961,745 190,974,986 6,392,043 (64,385,815) 145,942,959
Loss and total comprehensive FEBEREEARS

expense for the year - - - (4,443,433) (4,443,433)
Issue of shares by way FeEMETZ IR

of placements 42,455,000 105,360,061 - - 147,815,061
Transfer of reserve upon lapse FE AR AR R R 2 (R R

of share options - - (5,554,748) 5,554,748 -
Balance as at 30 June 2011 RK2011F6 A30R 2 &k 55,416,745 296,335,047 837,295 (63,274,500) 289,314,587
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

Cash flows from operating activities K& EFHESHE

Loss before tax BrA A g 18
Adjustments for: FE -
Interest income B A
Dividend income fix S 4 A
Interest expense FEFRAX
Depreciation e
Expense recognized in respect HRAREAE
of equity-settled share-based VARscAR 70 B it

payments 2N ER
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB ARz e
Impairment losses recognized in HAEEC R ZMERRE
respect of goodwill
Gain arising on change in fair value KEWMZERTE
of investment properties BEFTE A 2 W
Write-off of property, plant YIZ - BRE R EMER
and equipment

Write-off of inventories FEMER
Movements in working capital HEERE
Increase in inventories FEEm
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 N E b e IE
other receivables (3gm),

Decrease/(increase) in held-for-trading ~ #H{EEHE®R &AL,/ (1840)
investments
Increase in trade and other payables

B 5 R EA RN RIRE N

REEBAE/ (PR REFHE

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities
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Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
HZE20115F HZ 20104
6H30H 6H30H
LFE LEFE

HK$ HKS

;ﬁi /%71:
(restated)

(&E5))
(844,994) (1,092,356)
(63,703) (270,486)
(39,360) (28,400)

- 331,041
1,375,120 761,055
- 9,098,393
- (3,010,697)

7,125,121 -
(10,890,567) (16,950)
53,467 740,372
482,529 -
(2,802,387) 6,511,972
(353,160) -
(3,581,755) 4,542,229
8,457,501 (13,106,906)
5,315,844 1,980,544
7,036,043 (72,161)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FeERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for investment properties
Payments for property, plant
and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Net cash inflow on disposal
of subsidiaries
Net cash outflow on acquisition
of subsidiaries
Decrease in time deposits with
original maturity of more than
three months when acquired
Dividends received
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares
upon placements
Proceeds from issue of shares upon
exercise of share options
Interest paid

Net cash generated from
financing activities

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year

Representing:
Cash and bank balances
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REZFBDRERE
REMEZ K
W -~ BB M2 R

HEWE  BEREE
Fr55k1A
HENBRARZ
e mAFRE
UREE B AR Z
RE R FEE 30
REARRTEIE A
BE=EA
TEHEFEZOR D
S
BdF 8

BEREATAE FR

Hmﬁ /EEJ Iﬁrﬁ IJILE
RERBITROMERIEA

TR BT
A0 TS 3R0R

BEAFE

BMELBEL
HEFE

RERRESEE
120

FANNRER
RE%E

FRNBEER
RE%E

Rk :
He RIRITHET 20

Year ended
30 June
2011
HZE20115F
6H30H

LEFE
HK$
BT

Year ended
30 June
2010
HZ20104F
6H30H
LEFE
HKS

/%75
(restated)
(&&E5)

(78,252,647) (55,783,050)
(4,583,707) (5,398,443)
- 42,659

= 2,843,720
(46,190,291) =
= 13,700,000

39,360 28,400
63,703 270,486
(128,923,582) (44,296,228)
147,815,061 38,670,918
= 9,775,000
= (331,041)
147,815,061 48,114,877
25,927,522 3,746,488
42,972,539 39,226,051
68,900,061 42,972,539
68,900,061 42,972,539
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, and its shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company’s head office and principal place of business
in Hong Kong is Unit 1101-2, 11th Floor, Euro Trade Centre,
13-14 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company’s
registered office in the Cayman Islands is PO Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The following new and revised standards and interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") (“new and revised HKFRSs") have been
applied by the Group in the current year and have affected the
amounts reported in these consolidated financial statements
and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements. The impact of the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs is discussed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T A BTSRRI 5

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRSs (Amendment) Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2009

HKFRSs (Amendment) Amendments to HKFRS 5
as part of Improvements
to HKFRS issued in 2008

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for
First-time Adopters

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Group Cash-settled

Share-based Payment
Transactions
HKFRS 3 (Revised in 2008) Business Combinations

HKAS 17 (Amendment) Leases
HKAS 27 (Revised in 2008)  Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights Issues

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible Hedged Items

HK(IFRIC)=Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash
Assets to Owners

HK(IFRIC)=Int 19 Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

HK-Int 5 Presentation of Financial

Statements-Classification
by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on

Demand Clause

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material effect
on the amounts reported in these consolidated financial
statements and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

FERFT IR RAEIER] BB MR E XA
([EBMBEHREER D) (#)

BEMBHRELERT) 2000582

BRI TSR
S%RZ
METEE
BEMISHREER (BT BB TSRS
R ZE55R 2
BT (ER
20084F B ffh
2 BB
SR Z
HETEE
Z—E1n)
BB IEHRE BRRRE R
R85 (EFT) BRI
s 2R
F7RZ B
HF2ER
e
B IEHRE BREREMEZ
R85 (EFT) BINAR
BEMIEHRE EER S
YR S8R (55T) = vE)
RS
BB ISHRE 2RS35 EEA0
(FR2008F £&4E7T)
EFSERE 175 (1BR]) HE
BAZETERE275% 4RE RIB
(FR2008F £&{E7T) B 5

BB S ERERUERT) HBEHHE
BREFEANEISRERT) BEREM
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&8 (ERMEHRERE F%A A DK
ZE®) -REE17R FRTEE
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ZE®) - REE195R HERAR
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 17 Leases

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009, HKAS 17
Leases has been amended in relation to the classification
of leasehold land. Before the amendments to HKAS 17, the
Group was required to classify leasehold land as operating
leases and to present leasehold land as prepaid lease payments
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
amendments to HKAS 17 have removed such a requirement.
The amendments require that the classification of leasehold
land should be based on the general principles set out in
HKAS 17, that is, whether or not substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset have been
transferred to the lessee.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in
the amendments to HKAS 17, the Group reassessed the
classification of unexpired leasehold land as at 1 July 2010
based on information that existed at the inception of the leases.
Leasehold land that qualifies for finance lease classification has
been reclassified from prepaid lease payment to property,
plant, and equipment retrospectively. This resulted in prepaid
lease payments with the carrying amounts of HK$4,928,583
as at 30 June 2010 being reclassified to property, plant and
equipment.

As at 1 July 2009, the Group did not have any leasehold
land that qualifies for finance lease. The application of the
amendments to HKAS 17 has had no impact on the reported
loss for the current and prior years.

The effects of the above changes in accounting policies are
as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T A BTSRRI 5

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. EAHERLKEITIEEUEREER

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (EBMKREED ) ©)
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 17 Leases (continued) EESTEANE17EEE 2B (Z)

As at As at

30 June 30 June
2011 2010
120115 20106

6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
BT BT

Consolidated statement RE ISR R
of financial position

Increase in property, plant Y% - W KRN
and equipment 668,583 4,928,583
Decrease in prepaid lease payments TE R & IR (668,583) (4,928,583)

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
BZE HZE
201145 20106
6A30H 6H30H
IHFE IEFE
HK$ HKS
HBIT PETT
Consolidated statement of iRe 2 ERE R AN
comprehensive income and mEReRER
consolidated statement of cash flows
Decrease in amortization of TR S IEEE SRR
prepaid lease payment 230,750 41417
Increase in depreciation of property, M - BB KRBT ES N
plant and equipment (230,750) (41,417)
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards and interpretations that have been issued but are

not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

HKAS 12 (Amendment)

HKAS 19 (Revised in 2011)

HKAS 24 (Revised in 2009)

HKAS 27 (Revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (Revised in 2011)

HK (IFRIC)-Int 14
(Amendment)
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Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2010'

Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets*

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial
Statements®

Joint Arrangements®

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities®

Fair Value Measurement®

Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive
Income?

Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets®

Employee Benefits®

Related Party Disclosures®

Separate Financial
Statements®

Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures®

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement?
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2.

40

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs") (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
and 1 January 2011, as appropriate

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
& Effective forannual periods beginning on orafter 1 January 2011
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
2 Effective forannual periods beginning on orafter 1 January 2012
2 Effective forannual periods beginning on orafter 1 January 2013

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets and
will be effective from 1 April 2013, with earlier application
permitted. The Standard requires all recognized financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be measured at either
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that (i) are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows and (ii) have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost. All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9 might affect
the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the new and revised standards and interpretations will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

FERFT IR RAEIER] BB MR E XA
([EBMBEHREER D) (#)
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HAf
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the equity of the owners of the Company.
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42

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interest
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognized in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognized and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

Liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions
of the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that Standard.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognized immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests'proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or another measurement basis required by another
Standard.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the measurement period about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date. Measurement period
does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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3.

44

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognized in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognized in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognized in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would
be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit or
loss when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognized, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognized as of
that date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. A cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognized directly in profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. An
impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Ondisposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the course of the ordinary
activities, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all the
following conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognized when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established.

Interest income from a financial asset (other than a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss) is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Rental income is recognized in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for operating leases (see the accounting
policy below).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognized as a reduction of rental expense over the lease
term on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land for own use

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building
are considered separately for the purpose of lease classification,
unless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, in which case the entire lease
is generally treated as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold
land is accounted for as operating leases and amortized over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognized
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign operation,
in which case, such exchange differences are recognized in
other comprehensive income in the consolidated financial
statements and will be reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognized directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are recognized directly in other comprehensive
income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies(continued)

Forthe purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of foreign currency translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled
entity that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognized in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(i.e. partial disposals of associates or jointly controlled entities
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognized
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement plans are
recognized as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements

Share options granted to employees and others providing
similar services in an equity-settled share-based payment
arrangement

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received
is determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve). At the end of the reporting
period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognized in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

For share options that are vested at the date of grant, the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed immediately
to profit or loss.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognized in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognized in share options
reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’'s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognized to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

FEETBOR (@)

BoE

PS5 32 2 45 8 AR 9 BB RIBSEBUA R
o -

EHRMNRIARFEARRTEMNTE - ER
HAiFERRBA A RO WAL A
B URBEARRIITIER - HUERH
M ELAR A 2 E WS R TR EE A DR o AR
SEHREMHAENOBET AR RE SR
BRI AR FEEMHTHEGE o

BEFRAETDRBGEAMBHRRTEEREE
MR E R AR B R BRI MR E
ZEEE R =R o —RABLATE RN
ERZHEBRAREHEAE - BEEREEE
—RIEER LR ERTUE N AT MG S =
BN TEMMANHNRERE ZRE
R o i EEERR B B S ERBUE A &
SRPENHBEZENR S (KB HERINF
NEPERZEMEERAR AT SHERZ
FEERAEEREE -

ARMBARZRERBNERERVIRE
BREREE I AR - M AN 5 B AT 42 i
OZERER  MERZRAEIENAR
RO RIRSN - BEZEFRERERER
AHRERZRAEE ZEERBEEEN
FIREE R ADER B s M R A GE R By 28 2
e BRI AT R A SR AT LA 3 Bl B R -

BEFIAEENRAENSRERARTS(E
HRaS - WAETAHTBA B 5 R M A
HIHE BB ER ) B ERHELARERE ©

China Natural Investment Company Limited B X R IREBR LA &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR

wIN (3

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Current tax is recognized in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the deferred tax is also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Current or deferred tax for the year is recognized in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the
straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognized in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. On initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at cost including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognized.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. In addition,
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is indication that they may
be impaired.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognized as an expense immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another Standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease under that Standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another Standard,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase under that Standard.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Costs, including an appropriate portion of fixed and
variable overhead expenses, are determined on a first-in-first-
out basis. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value
of money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions (continued)

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination
Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are
initially measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. At
the end of the subsequent reporting period, such contingent
liabilities are measured at the higher of the amount that would
be recognized in accordance with HKAS 37 and the amount
initially recognized less cumulative amortization recognized
in accordance with HKAS 18.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into two categories,
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL") and loans and receivables. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near future; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

Annual Report 2011 &3

FERTEREE)

SRMIAE)

SHEE(E)

ERFER %
BERMEEDGTEBEE LA ZEHEK AR D
fic /6 B8 HA R I B IR A 2 5 0% © ERE AR 5%
BETAZEFHSER 2 REHE - B
MR RRRES A (BIEERE
BR AR AT R 2R D 2 — Y E A R B I FI =
EZEEA  XHRAREMEERITE) &R
R EREFEZFE o

BB TRZWATIIZER M R ELERER - I
PHERBRBBEREBRATEARZEBEER
4N o

BRBRIENFIEARZSHEE
ECHEAERRFERENETAKBRERIZ
AP EARZEREE s BAKER
FRRATFEARZEREE

AIBBAREREER:

HWERmEERTIIER -

TERRTABRLEEMBA + 3K

RONSHERE  BRAEEAHEE
ZE#HFERMTAMAS 8o - B
HH IR ERR R IR « 5

BRARBEEZINTETER - LA
fEREDHRTA -

RTFNER - SREERFIFEESREER
SN AT Y TR R I8 E A B R R A TFEA
BE :

B R tE T s R IRR A AT RE IR D
— Bt B ERRE ¢ sk



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

AR E SRR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

3.

56

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)
the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, and bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition
of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Foran AFS equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organization.

the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period, as well as observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognized is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

Forfinancial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss recognized is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognized in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognized.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognized on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL
on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Afinancial liability other than a financial liability held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss includes
any interest paid on the financial liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables)
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified
into financial liabilities at FVTPL and other financial liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognized and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which case the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when a financial asset is transferred, the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and
also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or loss.

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid
and payable is recognized in profit or loss.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(0) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

(9) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, management is required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of share-based payments

The fair value of the share options granted to employees
and others providing similar services determined at the date
of grant of the respective share options is expensed over
the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to the
Group's share options reserve. In determining the fair value
of the share options, the Binomial option pricing model (the
“Binomial Model”) was used. The Binomial Model is one of
the generally accepted methodologies used to calculate the
fair value of the share options. The Binomial Model requires
the input of subjective assumptions, including the expected
dividend yield and expected life of options. Any changes in
these assumptions can significantly affect the estimate of the
fair value of the share options. For the year ended 30 June
2010, total equity-settled share-based payments recognized
in profit or loss amounted to HK$9,098,393.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimation of fair value of investment properties

As described in note 15, the investment properties were
revalued at the end of the reporting period on market value
existing use basis by independent professional valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the judgement, the Group considers
information from current prices in an active market for similar
properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been reallocated. The value-in-use
calculation requires management to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

5. REVENUE 5. KA
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: REFAREERZ WA
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
BZ2011%F EZE20106F
6H30H 6H30H
LLEE IEFE
HK$ HKS
BT PETT
Provision of diagnostic testing  FEHE2 TR
and healthcare services, RARGERRTS
manufacturing and sale of 25 K SHE S
pharmaceutical products 27,324,327 3,325,835
Provision of advertising and RIEES K ARG
public relations services 11,010,741 620,074
Rental income He WA 3,568,223 758,283
41,903,291 4,704,192
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEEHR
Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company, HPLEREDE R AR MAARRE
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes EE(HEREERKE)ZWRER - 3o
of allocating resources to segments and assessing their BEMm 5 - REZERE RARE RS K
performance. For the purpose of financial reporting, the results HERREMREM I XBEHERE—D
of provision of diagnostic testing and healthcare services, o AEE P IREE B WS E R F ek
and sales of health food and pharmaceutical products were Eo KRR T 5 M ELE R 2w HE ¢

grouped into a single segment. The Group has identified the
following four operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments:
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EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Provision of diagnostic testing and healthcare services,

6. 7DHE

manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products

Provision of advertising and public relations services

Property investment

Research and development

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

by reportable segment:

Year ended 30 June 2011

Segment revenue
Segment results

Other income

Gain arising on change in
fair value of financial
assets classified as
held for trading

Central administration costs

Loss before tax
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BZ201156A30HILFE

A

SERFHEELRAE
ATERBAEE M0

PRITHFAX

FRBAIE R

aE)
M2 EAH R RIERTS - BLE N

E8m
REES R AR

v

BE

HE

fiTgT e pa

Pk L ONSES

AT RAEER2MDBPWAREEZ DT

Provision of
diagnostic
testing and
healthcare
services, Provision of
manufacturing  advertising
and sale of  and public
pharmaceutical relations Property Research and
products services investment development
RUDEAZR
REERYE HE  RUES
REEER ROBRE  NERE WRERR
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
27,324,327 11,010,741 3,568,223 - 41,903,291
(15,789,666) 1,633,200 13,302,743 (10,070)  (863,793)
156,885
7,148,609
(7,286,695)
(844,994)
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For the year ended 30 June 2011

HZE2011F6HA30HIEFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. TDEERM#E)
Segment revenues and results (continued) PEBAREE(E)

Provision of
diagnostic
testing and
healthcare
services,  Provision of
manufacturing  advertising
and saleof  and public

pharmaceutical relations Property  Research and
products services investment development
RREZERIE R
RIS - i 3
RHEER iz MERE WREMEE
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT

Year ended 30 June 2010 BZE2010F6A30HILFE

Segment revenue AEKA 3,325,835 620,074 758,283 = 4704,192
Segment results PEEE (20,661,062) (419669)  (1,636,530) (9507)  (22,726,768)
Other income He A 435,624
Gain arising on change in PERFIEFEE SR
fair value of financial BEATEE
assets classified as EE 2z WE
held for trading 22,238,798
Gain on disposal of HERBAR 2 W
subsidiaries 3,010,697
Central administration costs AR R{THFI S (3,719,666)
Finance costs BEKA (331,041)
Loss before tax BREAIER (1,092,356)
Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from MEHRZBABREINARL ZWA © R
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the ilﬁlﬂ/\*ﬁf%ﬁ%(zmoi DR o
year (2010: Nil).
Segment results represent the profit/(loss) earned or incurred DEEEAESHOBRISEE ZBF,/ (B
by each segment without allocation of central administration B)  WARSEFRRITHEAX « HMKA - 5
costs, other income, gain arising on change in fair value of HABEEREcRMEEATEESMEEZ
financial assets classified as held for trading, gain on disposal Hﬂl\_’\ - HERBAR 2 W - BEKAKRFT
of subsidiaries, finance costs and income tax expense. This is SHAZ WHEFRTEREERREUR
the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker T”E L EIR R DRI CETE ©

for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ZEERM®E
Segment assets and liabilities PHEEERER

As at As at
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
120114 720104
6H30H 6H308
HK$ HKS
B ITT PETT
Segment assets DB E
Provision of diagnostic testing TR EDR SRR IERTS
and healthcare services, R Ko §H 6 D5 T
manufacturing and sale of
pharmaceutical products 52,800,745 11,914,186
Provision of advertising and RS R ABEARY
public relations services 44,619,509 1,374,711
Property investment MERE 149,475,609 56,055,268
Research and development Tt 9 22 e 3% 12,735 15,806
Total segment assets BYEEE 246,908,598 69,359,971
Unallocated assets RAOBLEE 60,616,851 78,143,990
Consolidated assets mEBE 307,525,449 147,503,961
Segment liabilities SHEE
Provision of diagnostic testing IR BRI & AR 2 AR 75
and healthcare services, SLENRIHEEm
manufacturing and sale of
pharmaceutical products 8,437,067 292,912
Provision of advertising and RHESERABRE
public relations services 2,368,963 344,595
Property investment MR E 1,772,032 181,200
Total segment liabilities wyEBE 12,578,062 818,707
Unallocated liabilities AnaE 5,632,800 742,295
Consolidated liabilities meafd 18,210,862 1,561,002
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and RERSBRARDESERZEIR

allocating resources between segments:

all assets other than unallocated assets (mainly BRROPEEE(FEBERIEEER
comprising held-for-trading investments and certain ERAETHRS RIEITE 7(_)9\\ i)
BEHASRTAIZHRDE

cash and bank balances) are allocated to reportable
segments; and

B AR D EE%E(IE\L%LLMI a
BN FRBERBHEDETAZ2®D

reportable segments. o

all liabilities other than unallocated liabilities (mainly
comprising deferred tax liabilities) are allocated to
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ZSEERM®E
Other segment information Hitp BER
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
HZ201F HE2010F
6A30H 6H30H
ILFE IEFE
HK$ HKS
AT PETT
Depreciation wE
Provision of diagnostic testing R EDAR KRR -
and healthcare services, BUE N SHE B
manufacturing and sale of
pharmaceutical products 1,201,321 653,271
Provision of advertising and REEE R AR
public relations services 141,903 107,784
Unallocated depreciation ROBLITE 31,896 -
Total A&t 1,375,120 761,055
Additions to non-current assets REIETEEE
Provision of diagnostic testing R EDRE AR RS -
and healthcare services, BUE N SHE B
manufacturing and sale of
pharmaceutical products 11,772,659 5,351,043
Provision of advertising and REES R ABRS
public relations services 28,057,650 47,400
Property investment MERE 78,252,647 55,783,050
Unallocated non-current assets ROBLIERENEE 960,231 =
Total A&t 119,043,187 61,181,493
Impairment losses recognized AR MR R EEE
in respect of goodwill
Provision of diagnostic testing R EDRE RAR RS -
and healthcare services, B N SHE B
manufacturing and sale of
pharmaceutical products 7,125,121 -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
Geographical information
Substantially all of the Group's revenue from external customers
and non-current assets are located in Hong Kong.

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are
as follows:

Customer A EEA
Customer B ! =B

! Revenue from provision of diagnostic testing and healthcare
services, manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical
products.

’ The corresponding revenue does not contribute over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group in the respective year.
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70

OTHER INCOME

Interest income from bank deposits

Other interest income
Dividend income from
listed investments

Sundry income

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on borrowings
wholly repayable within five years

RITIF A BN
A A BUA

B ETIRERE ZBEWA

FETRUA

REFABEZEEZHE

HAgg A

Group

REE
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
HZE20115F HZ=20104F
6H30H 6H30H
LFE LEFE
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
52,401 12,258
11,302 258,228
39,360 28400
53,822 136,738
156,885 435,624

BE A

Group

rER
Year ended
30 June
2011
BZE20115
6H30H
LEE
HK$
BT

Year ended
30 June
2010
EHZ=2010%F
6H30H
IEFE

HKS

PETT
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B ZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

9.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FfEHBX
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
BZ20115F EZE2010%F
6H30H 6H30H
LEE IEFE
HKS$ HKS
BT PETT
Current tax: NEARIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BAEMNEH 636,740 -
Deferred tax (Note 25) EIERIE (i E25) :
Current year REE 2,961,699 363,649
3,598,439 363,649
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated ERNEHRBESFEZATERB SR 2
assessable profit for both years. 16.5%5T & ©
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EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

9.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9. FiSHRAX#®)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss REEzZREIHAGEEZERERZ
per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income BREZHRNT
as follows:
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
BZ2011%F B Z=2010%F
6H30H 6H30H
LFE IEFE
HK$ HKS
B IT BT
Loss before tax KRB AR (844,994) (1,092,356)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits BEBFETE165%TH A TR
Tax rate of 16.5% (139,424) (180,239)
Tax effect of expenses not B0 ST T 75 s 28
deductible for tax purpose 2,947,060 2,519,953
Tax effect of income not BERMBMAR T2
taxable for tax purpose (2,050,867) (103,027)
Tax effect of temporary differences RERE R E TG E
not recognized 2,677,631 -
Utilization of tax losses 2 AR E AR RIS EE
previously not recognized (685,368) (2,171,348)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognized NERRISE BB 72 849,407 298310
Income tax expense for the year REFEFTSHIR 3,598,439 363,649
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IRy =7

For the year

HZ=2011F

10.

ended 30 June 2011
6H308 IFFFE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

10.

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

Gross rental income from
investment properties
Less: Direct operating expenses

Employee benefits expense:
Directors'emoluments (Note 11)
Other staff’s salaries and allowances
Other staff's retirement

scheme contributions
Other staff’s share-based payments
Other staff's welfare

Total employee benefits expense

Total equity-settled share-based
payments recognized in profit or loss
Operating lease rentals in
respect of rented premises
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Auditors' remuneration
Write-off of property, plant and
equipment (included in “other
operating expenses”)
Write-off of inventories (included in “cost
of sales and services provided”)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Impairment of other receivables
Impairment losses recognized in
respect of goodwill
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BREMEZERS WA

B BEREERX

EERAREX :

SEME (FIsE1)
HB T 2#H& M2

Hb 8 T 2 RIKEFFHEIER

Hith B T 7 AR RERE Z 145K

Hh 8 THaA

SR ERRGE T

PIE R < AR A E A
VAR A7) A3 25 2 1SH R
HERREZQEHERS

WE  BERREBZITE

Gl
BERtATEMEESEH ]
ZE - BB MR EMAR

Bt AlHE RERHARTE A ]
ZEEHIR
HEM B LRz e

H At YR IR B
B R RERE

rEEER
AEEBEREARGEA)THIEASR

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
HZE20115F EHZE2010F
6H30H 6H30H
LFE LEFE
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
(restated)
(&&E5))
(3,568,223) (758,283)
252,374 61,780
(3,315,849) (696,503)
1,259,286 5185117
15,739,162 1,326,934
555,326 40,668
- 555475
71,480 8,238
17,625,254 7116432
- 9,098,393
1,561,611 234,832
1,375,120 761,055
480,000 275,000
53,467 740,372
482,529 -
- (3,010,697)
- 11,358
7,125,121 -
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EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 11. EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each Directors were as ENHENTREFNMSFIWT
follows:

Other emoluments

it s

Salariesand  Contributions
other  toretirement

benefits benefits scheme

eR RIKER
H3E 7 st EIfR
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Year ended 30 June 2011 HZ201156A300 LFE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. U Man long (Chairman) TXERE(EE) - 240,000 - 240,000
Mr. Li Wai Hung TEBEE - 140,000 7,000 147,000
Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary FRELE - 360,000 12,000 372,000
Mr. Wu Kai REESE
(resigned on 2 August 2010) (7201058 A2R EHT) - 40,000 - 40,000
Ms. Wu Mei Chu PR LT - 287,857 4,429 292,286
(appointed on 17 February 2011) (201192 17REZM)

Independent non-executive Directors BYHHTES

Mr. Chan Yip Man, Norman BREEE 72,000 = = 72,000
Mr. Hui Sin Kwong ArEALE 36,000 - - 36,000
Mr. Leung Chi Kin RERTAE 60,000 - - 60,000

168,000 1,067,857 23,429 1,259,286
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11.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Year ended 30 June 2010 201056 A30HILEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. U Man long (Chairman) TXERE(£E)

(appointed on 30 September 2009) (200959 A30REZ()
Mr. Li Wai Hung FEBEE

(appointed on 30 September 2009) (F2009%9A30REZ )
Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary [ERRE S E

(appointed on 11 November 2009) (72009511 B 11 BEZ(E)
Mr. Wu Kai RIESLE
Dr. Hui Ka Wah, Ronnie, JP AREBAAT AT

(resigned on 11 November 2009) (R2009F11 A1 BEHE)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Lui Chi Wah, Johnny SERE

(resigned on 30 September 2009) (7200959 A30HEHT)
Mr. Lau Kam Shan 21l %4E

(resigned on 30 September 2009) (F200959A30 A E(T)
Independent non-executive Directors BV EHTES
Mr. Chan Yip Man, Norman BREX x4

(appointed on 30 September 2009) (720099 A30REZAE)
Mr. Hui Sin Kwong FEREE

(appointed on 30 September 2009) (7200959 430 EZRAE)
Mr. Leung Chi Kin REREE

(appointed on 27 November 2009) (72009611 R27BEZ )
Mr. Chan Po Kwong BRERLE

(resigned on 27 Novernber 2009) (722009511 A 27 B EHE)
Mr. Kwok Shun Tim PaELE

(resigned on 30 September 2009) (F200959A30A E(T)
Mr. Lam Yan Wing ML E

(retired on 2 November 2009) (R2009% 11 A2BRE)
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11.

EEME @)

Other emoluments

Htie

Salaries and
other

benefits
HiaFl
HK$

o

Contributions
to retirement
benefits scheme
RIEH
TR

HK$

BT

= 180,000 = 180,000

= 72,000 3,600 75600

= 230,000 8,000 238,000

= 480,000 = 480,000

= 868,333 4917 873,250

= 750,000 = 750,000
9,000 600,000 = 609,000
54,000 = = 54,000
27,000 = = 27,000
35,667 = = 35,667
19,600 600,000 = 619,600
27,000 600,000 = 627,000
16,000 600,000 = 616,000
188,267 4,980,333 16,517 5185117
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

12. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 12. EEME
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the AEBRUGZEMESHALH - —£2(2010
Group, one (2010: five) was Director whose emoluments for the F:AMRESE  BEAESHHZ2HMER
capacity as a director are included in the disclosures in note LI o BE2011F6H308 LEF
11 above. The emoluments of the remaining four individuals B HRMUALTZHEe Rk EESERE
and the emoluments of the abovementioned Director for the BERHOZMEHT

capacity as an employee for the year ended 30 June 2011

were as follows:

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
BZ20mEF B Z=2010%F
6H30H 6H30H
IFE IEEFE
HK$ HKS
BT PETT
Salaries and other benefits e RHE MR 2,271,035 -
Contributions to retirement RREFIFTEIHR
benefits scheme 34,571 -
2,305,606 -
Their emoluments for the year ended 30 June 2011 fell within B ZE2011F6H30BILFE - REZMEME
the bands: MR -
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
BZ201F B Z=2010%F
6H30H 6H30H
LFE IEFE
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
EE&E EE&E
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,00075 7T -
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any FRAEETESNTEMNESHZ AL
of the Directors or the five highest paid individuals (including EMeAL(BEESERER)ERARSIH
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon AR E AR B S e R R E 2
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None B FAETNESREME -

of the Directors waived any emoluments during the year.
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13. LOSS PER SHARE 13.
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Loss BB

Loss for the purpose of basic HEREAREEESEMNS
and diluted loss per share ZEE(RRRHEE A
(Loss attributable iy 5=

to owners of the Company)

Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ BEEREARNEIEMS
shares for the purpose of basic 2B InfE T

loss per share
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: /E{EEEE LM 2 /2
Share options issued by the Company — ANAR)ZE1T 2 BEAHE

R REEEE RN 5 < &k
IAEFIER

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
loss per share
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BRER

RRBHEEARGEERER R ETEIRTR

AT BB

Year ended
30 June
2011
HBZ20115F

6HA30H
HEFE
HKS$
BT

(4,443,433)

Year ended
30 June
2010
EHZE2010%F
6H30H
IEFE

HKS

PSTT

(1,456,005)

Year ended
30 June
2011
HZ2011%F
6A30H

IEFE

Number

of shares

R E

Year ended
30 June
2010
EHZ=2010%F
6H30H
IEFE
Number

of shares
SvE4=

652,740,919 214,928,317
= 4,297
652,740,919 214,932,614
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EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

n\/T\

14.
Group

Cost

Balance as at 1 July 2009
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at 30 June 2010
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Additions

Transfer to investment property
Disposals

Balance as at 30 June 2011

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Balance as at 1 July 2009

Depreciation expense

Eliminated on disposals

Balance as at 30 June 2010
Depreciation expense

Transfer to investment property
Eliminated on disposals

Balance as at 30 June 2011

Carrying amounts
Balance as at 30 June 2011

Balance as at 30 June 2010

Balance as at 1 July 2009

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:

Land and buildings
Laboratory equipment
Leasehold improvements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2
0097 A1 B 2 &tk
A
it

12010F6 8308 2 &
WEEHB AR

A
EESRAYE

HE

W0NE6A308 2 Gtk
ZHMERAE
10097 A18 2 &k
FEER

NI
1201066 8308 2 &84
FEER
EESRAYE

TR R
W0NE6A308 2 sk

RESHE
12011E6A308 2 &%

12010F6A308 2 &

TA2009E7 A1 B 2 gk

Office equipment, furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

78

14. Y% - BERRKE
£33
Office
equipment,
Landand  Laboratory  Leasehold furniture Motor
Buildings  equipment improvements  and fixtures vehicles
WAERE
FAR
T REF EEkE RE
HKS HKS HKS
AL AT A
(restated) (restated)
(1BE7) (=31)
= 2110370 1,656,780 679,205 134959 4581314
5300000 39,998 = 58445 = 5398443
- (406,517) (1,656,780) (172,189) - (2.235486)
5300,000 1,743851 = 565461 134959 7,744,271
= 1,580,391 597521 64192 = 2819874
- 591,243 2611335 1381,129 - 4583707
(4.542,857) = = = = (4.542.857)
= = (50,640) (409,281) = (459921)
757143 3915485 3158216 2179271 134959 10,145,074
= 1554517 675444 420581 23042 2673584
44167 209521 331,356 136511 39,500 761,055
= (346,067) (1,006,800) (99,588) = (1/452455)
44167 1417971 = 457504 62,542 1982184
246071 468,250 209,060 412239 39,500 1375120
(246,071) = = = = (246071)
= = (17,724) (388,730) = (406,454)
44167 1,886,221 191,336 481013 102,042 2,704,779
712976 2029264 2,966,880 1,698,258 32917 7,440,295
5255833 325,880 - 107957 AT 5762087
= 555,853 981,336 258624 11917 1907730

5%
20%
20%
20% — 40%
25%

A LW - BERREEBRIATIE XL
BREAGFNE

T RIEF 5%

ERERE 20%
”iflk 20%
WAERME  REAKEEES 20% — 40%
RE 25%
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties, REYFE - HLTHE
at fair value
Balance as at beginning of year {1458k
Additions INE
EEAYE  KEREHE

Transfer from property,
plant and equipment

Gain on property revaluation — ¥JFEEHURES
Balance as at end of year FREEER

The fair values of the Group's investment properties as at 30
June 2011 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out at that date by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited
("DTZ"), a firm of independent qualified professional valuers
not connected to the Group. DTZ employs professional valuers
who are members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors,
and have appropriate professional qualifications and recent
experience in the location and category of the investment
properties being valued. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.
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REYE

Group

REH
As at As at
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
20115 720104
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
BT BT
55,800,000 -
78,252,647 55,783,050
4,296,786 -
10,890,567 16,950
149,240,000 55,800,000

KEBKREYER2011F6A30BHAFET
BRI A B B ER B S ER B
EMEERTERAR(EHERITRZA
ETHHEET BERTEACEEGHE
MaREBAEMEekE  THEEEZNSE
XERKEWEEREMECLNERERS
MHIE B o (HETI2REM S EREMUYE
ZRPEIRMERE -

PIBEAEEMERRONCETEETARKE
BB S - MERRURFEERGE
WHRBRARBREDE
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above

comprise:

Land in Hong Kong:
Long leases
Medium-term leases

16. GOODWILL

REEZ T
REHE
REEE

15. REWXE (%)
i E Y EEEeE

Group

REE
As at As at
30 June 2010
A20115F 720104
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
BT BIT

30 June 2011

70,140,000 36,200,000
79,100,000 19,600,000
149,240,000 55,800,000

16. RE

Cost
Balance as at 30 June 2010
and 1 July 2010

Additions arising from:

— Acquisition of Island Kingdom

Group (Note 30)
— Acquisition of PR ASIA

Consultants Limited (Note 30)

Balance as at 30 June 2011

Impairment

Balance as at 30 June 2010
and 1 July 2010
Provided for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2011

Carrying Amounts

Balance as at 30 June 2011

Balance as at 30 June 2010

80

AR AR
201056 A308 &
20107 A1 B 2 &5k _

A TFIERESE ZIBA

R2011F6 308 2 &

A

— U B&Island Kingdom
& (KMieE30)

— M R
BRAR (MEE30)

7125121

26,261,838

33,386,959

201086 8308 &
20107 A1 H 2 &5 _

FAEE

R2011F6 308 2 &8k

IREE

R20115F6 A30H 2 &5

7,125,121

7,125,121

26,261,838

1201056 A30H 2 &5 _
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16.

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to two cash-generating units (“CGUs") representing
the operating activities of Island Kingdom Company Limited
and its subsidiaries (the “Island Kingdom Group”) which are
the principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of
pharmaceutical products and the operating activities of PR
ASIA Consultants Limited (“PR ASIA") which are engaged in
the provision of public relations services.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs were determined based
on value-in-use calculations using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
the management. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using a growth rate of 3% and 5% on the
Island Kingdom Group and PR ASIA respectively. The cash
flow projections of the Island Kingdom Group and PR ASIA
are discounted at pre-tax discount rate of 12.44% and 15%
per annum respectively which reflect the specific risks relating
to these CGUs.

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are
those regarding the discount rates, the budgeted revenue and
budgeted expenses during the forecasting periods, which are
determined by management based on past performance and
managements’ expectations for the market development.

The impairment testing was carried out by management
based on the value-in-use calculations. The impairment loss
of HK$7,125,121 in respect of the goodwill arising from the
acquisition of the Island Kingdom Group was resulted in the
reassessment of the future profitability of the Island Kingdom
Group.
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BmEE)

a2 R E R

HRERRDNS - AEEESRKEMER
cELEBM(REEEEN]) - Blisland
Kingdom Company Limited & EF1/& A 7] ([ Island
Kingdom%& & | - T EN FRUERIHESEME
B EEEBARTMABBER AR
MNARE] - RERHABRBED) 2E&E
&) o

ReErEfn 2 lE S BEZREREAER
H - HERRBEREESEM 2 AFHME Y
HREEEEFARERE - BB A FHREZ
e mE 95 Bl BAlsland Kingdom & B Kz 22 )
N Z3%K5%E &K EHEH o Island Kingdom
B R TENA R 2 IR &= TRR T IR T A AL
RED B AFF12.44% R 15%853R - Tz E8L
RERUEAReEESM 2 HFERR

ERABEFECHARBRRSFREBENRR
RERFERZ 2BR  ZEBRRBER
BRENERREEEBHMHEERZME
MEEE e

EEBRBEERAEASEEITRENR - B
FAULEEIsland KingdomSE B FTE 4 2 i 2R E
[E5187,125,121 78 T B B E {dilsland Kingdom&e
B2 RHHEF] o
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17.

82

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables

Receivables arising from dealing
in listed securities

Deposits paid

Prepayments

Other receivables

B 5 [ WEIR

BE LWESM
B 2 JEMGRIR

EffRe

FA IR

H At R RIR

17. EZRHMEWIE
Group Company
REE KA T
As at As at As at As at
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2011 2010 2011 2010
20115 720104 M201145 7201045
6H30H 6H30H 6H30H 6H30H
HKS$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT
8,318,655 520,194 - -
13,932 3,101,585 - -
9,365,976 29,531 - =
501,912 258,349 - -
2,061,208 515,883 207,300 192,667
20,261,683 4,425,542 207,300 192,667

The Group grants a credit period ranging from 30 to 60 days
to its customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables, presented based on the invoice date:

0 - 30 days
31 - 60 days
61 — 90 days

Over 90 days

0E30K

31E60K
612 90K
FBIAI0KR

REBBETFTEBEENRESHN F30K E60
Ko BBERRHNN 2 EHRKRFIBZRERD
W :

Group

rEH
As at As at
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
HA2011F 720104
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
3,745,732 246,977
2,263,530 47,320
868,409 31,325
1,440,984 194,572
8,318,655 520,194
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see
below for aged analysis) which are past due at the end of
the reporting period but against which the Group has not
recognized an allowance for doubtful receivables because
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

Ageing of past due but not impaired

Up to 90 days &%90K
91 — 180 days 91E 180K
Over 180 days BB 180K
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17.

B RH A EWRKE(®)
EXBEZE S ERRARERREHRED
BHSB(RMTRRA) - ERRERE
EZYMHREALY  AUBRAEEERT
Y 1 0 3 45 e S SRR R 4 o AR SR B3 A o
SHERBEAERR LA MEERE -

B HA B 3 MR B 2 BR R

Group

KEH
As at As at
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
20115 720104
6A30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
3,218,430 78,645
611,973 970
742,520 193,602
4,572,923 273,217
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18. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 18. HEEERE

Held-for-trading investments include: FHEEEREBE

Group Company
rEE AT
As at As at As at As at
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2011 2010 2011 2010

R201145 MR2010EE M20115 MR20105
6H30H 6A30H 6A30H 6A30H

HKS$ HKS HK$ HKS
BT BIT BT BIT
Equity securities listed RES L
in Hong Kong N 19,590,000 | 27,207,800 - -
Listed investment funds REE LT
in Hong Kong REES 505,000 2,296,000 - =
Market value of listed investments MR &M HE 20,095,000 | 29,503,800 - -
Unlisted investment IEEMIRE 9,991,292 9,039,993 | 9,991,292 9,039,993
Fair value ~FEE 30,086,292 38,543,793 9,991,292 9,039,993
Fair value of listed investment is determined with reference to EHREZAFENZEMRZTEEARE
quoted market bid prices. Fair value of unlisted investment is BT LMEREZATFTEDNSELL AR
determined with reference to broker’s quoted bid price. W2 BANBEE °
19. INVENTORIES 19. FE
Group
REE
As at As at
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
20115 720104
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
B IT PSIT
Raw materials JRE} 2,129,223 =
Work in progress ER 2,013,039 =
Finished goods BURN R 1,193,018 -
Balance at end of year FREH 5,335,280 -
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20. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 20. RERBITER
As at 30 June 2011, the Group bank balances carried interest 201156 4308 « AEB K RITEFZN T
rates ranged from 0.01% to 0.7% per annum (2010: 0.01% per 0.01E K07 (20105 : & F001E ) 2 F F|
annum) and the Company’s bank balances carried interest KB MAREMRITEFEZRN F001E
rates at 0.01% per annum (2010: 0.01% per annum). (20105 : BF0018) 2 EFREHE o

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. EBEZREMENFRKIER

Group Company
rEE AT
As at As at As at As at
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2011 2010 2011 2010

A201145 20105 20115 20104
6H30H 6H30H 6H30H 6H30H

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT PSTT B IT PSTT

Trade payables B ZER IR 3,334,714 71,855 = -
Other payables and accruals H b FE A 5/IE

K IEst & H 8,858,889 956,998 691,961 345,086

Rental deposits received B EEE 1,132,150 168,500 - -

13,325,753 1,197,353 691,961 345,086
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21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 21. BEEREMEMRE@E)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on REZAZS| 28 FENRIEZ Bk DT a0
the invoice date: i
Group
AEH
As at As at
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
20114 20104
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
BT PETT
0 - 30 days 0£30K 2,777,856 66,393
31 - 60 days 31E60K 422,808 -
61 — 90 days 61290 4,038 -
Over 90 days FBHAI0KR 130,012 5,462
3,334,714 71,855
The average credit period on purchases of certain goods is BEETERZFHEREHAI0R - A5E
30 days. The Group has financial risk management policies HlE VSRR EIREGR - UERARRESRANR
in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit W B B FE S 5R0E o
time frame.
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22. SHARE CAPITAL 22, KA
Number of Share
shares capital
RAEE [}
HKS
BIT
Authorized EE
As at 1 July 2009, ordinary shares of 200957818 - B
HK$0.01 each EfE001B T &R 5,000,000,000 50,000,000
Share consolidation of every five 8 AREREE.0 BT
issued and unissued shares of BT RAREITRG
HK$0.01 each into one consolidated aftA—REREE
share of HK$0.05 each with effect 0.058TTHI & Bk (D -
from 21 January 2010 H2010F1 A21 B4 (4,000,000,000) -
As at 1 July 2010, ordinary shares of M20105F7H18 - 8%
HKS$0.05 each EE0.057 T2 EiliR 1,000,000,000 50,000,000
Increase in the authorized share capital FEFEIIME 529,000,000,0008% = %
by creation of additional 9,000,000,000 EE0.05/8 7T 2 B 718 1l
shares of HK$0.05 each with effect SEERRA - 5201181 A178
from 17 January 2011 HEAE 9,000,000,000 450,000,000
As at 30 June 2011, ordinary shares of 201146 4308 - B
HK$0.05 each H{E0.05/8 702 A% 10,000,000,000 500,000,000
Issued and fully paid ERTREZ
As at 1 July 2009, ordinary shares of 2009567 A1 H - G
HK$0.001 each EE0.001/87T 2 E iR 8,836,744,630 8,836,745
Share consolidation of every ten 155 AR FAREE0.001 T
issued and unissued shares of BT RAREITRG &6
HK$0.001 each into one consolidated R—IREREE0ETT
share of HK$0.01 each with effect K& GFEn - B20099F8 H6H
from 6 August 2009 B (7.953,070,167) -
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22. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
Issue of shares upon
exercise of share options
Allotment and issue of 185,000,000
shares of HKS0.01 each at a price of
HKS$0.13 per placing share in
November 2009 by way of placement
Share consolidation of every five
issued and unissued shares of
HK$0.01 each into one consolidated
share of HK$0.05 each with effect
from 21 January 2010

Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
Allotment and issue of 37,000,000
shares of HK$0.05 each at a price of
HK$0.43 per placing share in
May 2010 by way of placement

As at 30 June 2010, ordinary shares of
HK$0.05 each
Allotment and issue of 243,000,000
shares of HK$0.05 each at a price of
HKS$0.22 per placing share in
September 2010 by way of placement

Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
Allotment and issue of 100,400,000
shares of HKS0.05 each at a price of
HKS$0.165 per placing share in
December 2010 by way of placement

Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
Allotment and issue of 505,700,000
shares of HK$0.05 each at a price of
HK$0.165 per placing share in
March 2011 by way of placement

As at 30 June 2011, ordinary shares of
HK$0.05 each

88

22. BA&#)

Number of Share
shares capital
RGEE [} &
HKS
PETT
ERTRHARE
BAREE.01E T AR 883,674,463 8,836,745

TR B 1T 2 B (D
42,500,000 425,000

72009 11 A& BEL &

LA RR AL & AR 100.138B T 2

BB 38 & 3517185,000,0008%

FRXE{E0.017 T YA 1D 185,000,000 1,850,000
S EAREREE.1BITH

BEEITRAEITRG A6

IR EEO0.055 T /Y

AR - B201051 A21H8

REAERL (888,939,571) =

HRRE{E0.0578 Jo Y & 3 A% 222,234,892 11,111,745
7201045 BB @RS
AR R & B (20437882
EA&AEEE & E51737,000,000%

SR E0.0578 T KB {5 37,000,000 1,850,000
2010568308 @ & 259,234,892 12,961,745
H{E0.0578 702 L A%

R20106F90 A B BAL &
AR B & B2 100.2278n 2
B A& BE 2% & E217243,000,000/%

I EE0.057 TR D 243,000,000 12,150,000
SREE.05B T2 E A% 502,234,892 25,111,745

R2010512 A BB E
LABF A% e & B 1501658 7.2
{EA&BC 2% N 2£17100,400,000/%

R E0.057 7T H A% 19 100,400,000 5,020,000
FIREE0.0578 T 2 EiEAK 602,634,892 30,131,745

M2011F3 A EBRE
A AR B & A (90.1658 T2
B8 AE 2% & B8 17505,700,000/%
SR E{E0.05% TR A% (% 505,700,000 25,285,000

MR2011F6 /308 @ &h%
H{E0.0578 702 L A% 1,108,334,892 55,416,745
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23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 23. RHEBATRZKRE

Company
AN

As at As at
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
H2011 £ F2010%F
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
A ITT PETT

Unlisted investments, at cost JELETIRE - TR

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in RAREEHB AR ZFBEHNMIFES -
note 34.

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries FEW(FEAT) B B 2 Bk 18

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries as shown on the Company’s RRABABARRRIT R Z U (BB
statement of financial position are unsecured, interest-free and NAFIBAEER - R ERARERER -

repayable on demand.
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n\/T\

RESERVES

(a) Group
The share options reserve relates to share options
granted to certain Directors, employees, other eligible
participants and The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Further information about share-based payments is set
out in note 27 to the financial statements.

24,

24,

(b) Company

Balance as at 1 July 2009

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year
Issue of shares by
way of placements
Issue of shares upon
exercise of share options
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments
Transfer of reserve upon
exercise of share options

Balance as at 30 June 2010
and 1 July 2010

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

Issue of shares by way
of placements

Transfer of reserve upon
lapse of share options

Balance as at 30 June 2011

20

20097 818 2 4

FEBREREEARY
BEm#ET RN

TR EMSRIT 2 (D

Muk%

EE AR
T3
??@E\%H&%Zﬁ%ﬁ@}ﬁé

1201056 4308 K
20107 B 1B 2 &84
FEFEREZEARY

BEmMETZ RN

BRI R R e

#2016 8308 2 &k

E 3]

(a)

REE

BREFRGSETETES  ES -
H g ERSHEERBBNIAZH
BRI o DARK(D RER 2 I 5KAYE
FERBR M BERERME27

(b) PN

Total equity

Share attributable

Share options  Accumulated  to owners of
premium reserve losses  the Company
ENGIE 7PN

RIADEE SEIRRE RiER EGEGZAR
HKS HKS HKS HKS

BT o BT BT
143,110,423 837,295 (62,989,031) 80,958,687
- - (3,528,083) (3,528,083)
34970918 = = 34970918
9,350,000 = = 9,350,000

- 9,098,393 - 9,098,393

3,543,645 (3,543,645) = =
190,974,986 6,392,043 (66,517,114) 130,849,915
= = (3,859,637) (3,859,637)

105,360,061 = = 105,360,061
- (5,554,748) 5,554,748 -
296,335,047 837,295 (64,822,003) 232,350,339
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25.

26.

DEFERRED TAXATION
The followings are the major deferred tax balances recognized
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

Deferred tax liabilities

As at 1 July 2010 201067 H18
Charge to profit or loss BiEmARNKR
As at 30 June 2011 M20114F6 H30H

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$48,310,000 (2010: HK$47,316,000)
available for offset against future profits that may be carried
forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been recognized
in respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustees.

The total expense recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income of HK$578,755 (2010: HK$57,185)
represents contributions payable to these plans by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the plans.
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25.

26.

ELEH IR
THARRNFEIEBEFERR L EERET
MIRAERR R B E

EEHARE

Group
rEE
Accelerated
tax Revaluation

depreciation of properties

MEBEFTE  URER
HKS HKS
BT BT
75394 288,255 363,649
21050 2,940,649 2,961,699
96,444 3,228,904 3,325,348

RFEBRR AEEZ2RASAHEERE
#948,310,0007 7T (20104 : 47,316,000% T )
ATAREIEAREN - ZEMB AR ATIE
E518 AT FE PR BR A 8 o /R A AR 2R s A SRR AT
TEA] - B b AR A 1B S R R R E A IE B
E o

BIREAGHE
AEBRRAEAABRETRIBHER
Bl - AABMEEREEARSZE
SRA  BAKENEESDFEE o

AEBEREERBNIE T FIEFE K
578,7557% 7t (2010%F : 57,1857 7T ) {E A& ¥ 5%
B WEEGKAGEEZHEKERTE

7
e °©
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27.

92

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Share Option Scheme
A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the Company on 20 April 2004 for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
may, at its discretion, invite any employees, directors,
advisors, consultants, licensors, distributors, suppliers,
agents, customers, joint venture partners, strategic
partners and services providers of and/or to any
member of the Group whom the Board considers in
its sole discretion, to have contributed to the Group
from time to time (together “Participants”) to take
up options to subscribe for shares of the Company
("Options”).

Options granted should be accepted within 14 days
from the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the Options,
the eligible person shall pay HKS1 to the Company by
way of consideration for the grant. The Options may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during the option period
after the Options has been granted by the Board. An
option period is a period to be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion and notified by the
Board to each eligible person as being the period
during which any Options may be exercised, such
period to expire not later than 10 years after the date
of grant of the Options.

The subscription price will be determined by the
Board at its absolute discretion and shall be no less
than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be
a business day; and (b) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

27.

URGBARER ZNRRZ

(a)

BB et &

A EFA200454 A 20 B FRANBE AR A AT
EI([EERERTE]) » USE K 22 B A
REBEBHKINEL BERNE B
LEE .

Z
Ed N

AprEER([EFE DABBES
ESesRRBRAETREAKH
BEMOAREEL A SEERK
BRAFAMEREE  -BF  FHAA
BB - FFAI A - DiHE - KR
BREA BF ABBH KR
BHERBHER(REI 28 )%
] R AN ) B ) 0 i A e ([ B X
) -

R H AR AR R A ##esH 148
AT AR - & B/ ATRENER
ERARRNRB MBI IERER
FREBRENRE o BT IZ R
ATEMGERRESSR L BRERE
FENR E AR BERT 1T{E - BB AREAARR D
HESSEHENBEEEMIR - WH
BB AR ABBRERRZBA
BRATEE - RN HERES BR
ET T SHRIBI0EEm

REEFHEFSLENBEE I
ATFAIRTIN=EHHRSE : @)
RHER(MWARLEER)BRMEDL
K& RRERAEAOBAUHE: &
(0) R X H H HIAT 18 & 2 R B P
FH G HRERAEA RN F1HK
Mg RORDEE -
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted or to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme is 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the
listing date of the Company on GEM (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit").

The Company may renew the Scheme Mandate Limit at
any time subject to prior approval of the shareholders
of the Company. No Participants shall be granted an
option which, if exercised in full, would result in such
Participants becoming entitled to subscribe for such
number of shares as, when aggregated with the total
number of shares already issued under all the options
previously granted to him or her which have been
exercised, and, issuable under all the outstanding
options previously granted to him or her which are
for the time being subsisting and unexercised, would
exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant of the
Options. Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of the grant) in excess of HKS5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

Unless early terminated in accordance with the terms
therein, the Share Option Scheme will remain valid
and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on 18 June 2004.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at the shareholders’ meeting.
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27. UBROR/ERZARXE @)

(a)

BRES 8 (E)
RIBBIRAERT 8 2 & R 1A =
ARAT o B B PR JE 1T (2 s 7y 7T AR 37T
B BB R AR BREIFR LT A
HEBEBITRAE10% ([ 5 21X HER
#l) -

MBS AR REATELIE - AR
7] A] PAEAa] B P 5B %7 T B IR HEPR 58 o
EEREEREE BT+ =@
RHARE - fMERTAR2EE R LB
BRERBHTEMERZE2EHES
ERENZERDEE ER LRIRE
FTER FRE/TE B mERTT R
RITEMRBITHRG A HBEER
EEITRM AN 1% BlZ2EE K
TERERE RNARASESE =
BITHABREBRR KM EF 2
BMEALTETERE BAFEEESEK
RNEVEMN IEITE S HE o BEHD - f
REE+ @A BEAR T ARRE
BRERB IR TEEREE 2L
] B B A £ 7 BB AR B A AN 1 B (1A
B [ 2 31T %10 2. 0.1% 3 B (AR IB R
HEREE AAARRMERTE)
18 415,000,000/ 7T + RlJZE H L FEAR R
A FESRRERE -

BRIEEB R R 2 IR B ER TR ER
1F - BRIEEARHEET 8120046 A 18H
HEET10F AR AR AR

BREY TN THRAEAZERE LR
BRERARE ERFZRER -
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 27. URGAEBZARREZ &)

(continued)

(a)  Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) IR ESTEI(F)
The following table discloses the movements of share TREFEEZE2010F %2011F6F30H
options granted under the Share Option Scheme IFFEIRERRET & L 2 B
during the years ended 30 June 2010 and 2011: B :

Granted Exercised Lapsed
Exercise  Outstanding during the duringthe  Outstanding duringthe  Outstanding
price asat  yearended yearended asat  yearended asat
Date of grant Exercise period pershare  1July2009 30June2010 30June2010 30June2010 30June2011  30June2011
#009F  BZ010F  BZ20108 R010F  BR0NE Ra011%

71818 6A30A L 6A30A L 6A30H 6A30A L 6A308

EFAH TEsH SROFEE HATE  FEART  FEROE WATE  FERAN HARTE
HKS
B
9 July 2009 9 July 2009 to 1150 - 8500000 8,500,000 - - -
009579 8 July 2010
Notes () & (ii) 2009F7A9HZ
B 01067588
14 August 2009 14 August 2009 to 0905 - 18,520,000 - 18520000 (18,520,000) -
2009587148 13 August 2010
Notes (i) & (iv) 2009F8A148Z
Bt i R i) 010F8F13H

= 27,020,000 8,500,000 18520000 (18,520,000 =

Notes: P%E -

(i) The exercise price and number of share options i) MR2009F7 AR & TR EE AR # 2
granted on 9 July 2009 were retrospectively adjusted TR EREE B 35 I R20095F
for the share consolidation which became effective 8H6R X&201041 H21 8 #E £ &)
on 6 August 2009 and the share consolidation which BR1DE GHEL B AZE -

became effective on 21 January 2010.

(ii) The exercise price and number of share options (i) R2009F8H14B T THEREZ
granted on 14 August 2009 were retrospectively TEEREEB B 3ER201061 H21
adjusted for the share consolidation which became BAEEEBRGEFIELBHA
effective on 21 January 2010. o
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27.

(continued)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(a) Share Option Scheme (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iii)

Annual Report 2011 &3

The fair value of 8,500,000 share options granted
on 9 July 2009 was determined by the directors to
be approximately HK$3,544,000 with reference to
a valuation performed by an independent firm of
professional valuers using a Binomial model. The
inputs into the model included the share price of
HKS$0.022 per share on the date of grant, the exercise
price of HK$0.023 per share, expected volatility of
120.504%, expected option life of one year, no
expected dividend and estimated annualized risk free
interest rate of 0.080%. The 8,500,000 share options
exercised during the year ended 30 June 2010
resulted in the issue of 8,500,000 ordinary shares of
HKS$0.05 each in the share capital of the Company.
The weighted average closing price of the shares of
the Company immediately before the dates on which
the share options were exercised was HK$0.024.

The fair value of 18,520,000 share options granted
on 14 August 2009 was determined by the directors
to be approximately HKS$5,555,000 with reference
to a valuation performed by an independent firm
of professional valuers using a Binomial model. The
inputs into the model included the share price of
HK$0.168 per share on the date of grant, the exercise
price of HK$0.181 per share, expected volatility of
121.821%, expected option life of one year, no
expected dividend and estimated annualized risk
free interest rate of 0.230%.

The share options granted by the Company during
the year ended 30 June 2010 include share options
granted to the Group's consultants and advisors for
services rendered. As the services rendered by these
consultants and advisors are similar to those rendered
by the Group's employees, these consultants and
advisors are considered as “employees and others
providing similar services” under the context of
HKFRS 2. Accordingly, the fair values of the share
options granted to the Group's consultants and
advisors during the year ended 30 June 2010 were
measured on the same basis as those granted to
employees as disclosed in note (jii) and (iv) above.

27.

URGBRER 2NRRZ (#)

(a)

BRES 8 (E)
M : ()

(iiff)

(iv)

20097 A9R & F #98,500,000
DEREZATELEZEESR
#93,5440008 T © W2 EBLE
EHEMERA ZEENET MG
BTG - RX 2w ABBER
BT B H 2 IRE 8 1R0.022%
7T BR{TE(E0.023% T - T8 Hf
I8 120.504% « TEEATT{ERR—4F
# 78 HA AR 2 % TE HA 4 B B 4 A1) =
0.080% ° & £20104E6 8300 IF 4
FE4T188,500,00017 i B AE 3 AN A A
%% 178,500,0000% & % T {80.0575 7T

LR - ARAIRGO R EERE
RRAERETEE B & AR T
{BE7500248 7T °

7200948 A 14 B 5 F 918,520,000
DEREZATELEZEESR
#95,5550008 7T © W2 EBILE
EHEMERA ZEENET MG
BFTEH - RX 2w ABBER
MR T B H 2 IRE 8 AR0.1687
7T BR{TEE0.1814 T - T Hf
RI8121.821% « TEEATT{ER—4F -
# 78 HA AR 2 % TE HA 4 3L B 4 A1) =
0.230% °

#H E2010F6 5308 (L EE AR 7
BT 0 R RRE B I R (AR A 1 #5%
FANE EEE R R A BB ARAE o
MR ZEEE M KA AFTRERAR
75 B & B g 8 FriR 4t a0 AR 75 48
i ENREE SRS EAE
2R TEFE - R FEEREAAE
RAME B REMBHRBOREA
+ ] Bt - #E2010%6H308 LE
FERTAEBEERNRERANE
RRAEH N F(E » HIRRRETE
S i) B (V) FT 3 BB 1% T B B 0 R AR
ERIAERT G2 -
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b)

96

Right of First Refusal Agreement with The Chinese
University of Hong Kong

Pursuant to an agreement dated 8 August 2002 entered
into between The Chinese University of Hong Kong
and the Company relating to the grant of a right of
first refusal to the Company by The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in respect of certain technology and
inventions, as amended and supplemented by
agreements dated 31 October 2003 and 16 April 2004
(the “Right of First Refusal Agreement”), the Company
will be offered a right of first refusal for the grant by The
Chinese University of Hong Kong of a royalty-bearing
exclusive licence to use and commercially develop
certain technologies and inventions and other non-
invasive diagnostic technologies for detecting cancer
and foetal diseases developed by Professor Lo Yuk
Ming, Dennis in future.

In return, the Company agreed to grant to The Chinese
University of Hong Kong or such person as The Chinese
University of Hong Kong may direct (including trustees
of any funds) options to subscribe for shares or to pay
cash up to a maximum amount of HK$4,600,000 over
the period of the term of such agreement of four years
commencing from 18 June 2004. Such grant of options
will be granted to The Chinese University of Hong Kong
at intervals of twelve months. Such options are not
intended to be granted under the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 20 April 2004.

27.

URGBARER 2NRRZ (@)

(b)

EEBPUABHNELEEEG S

RIEE B R UK B EAR R 77420029
8ASHEI N EMBE BRI ARERFA
REME LB E B T Rt k3K
F #1555 (48 B BB AB20036F10A31H
&2004F4 16 B M 1B #E R R MEIT)
([MBEBERERZ])  ARrBEHR
BEEBRNAREEFEINEMNEE
MBREFENELEER AT AE
BAENEmEFAREELPZRIZARZ
FITHi 28 #9534 K 35 R e b F BA
BERIE MR ZERNIEENS EZE
B o

EARER  ARRIRERTEBFX
AESBBRXREBEENAL(E
FBEMESHZTEA)BIRE AT
FR2004F6 8 18 B #E 5T HY 7% 179 7% HU44F
HRARBROIZNERESTE
4,600,000 LAY IR & © R EHERER
BRAEBTZ@EARTEEFR XK
B. Z2EWBRETEBERARAR
20044 A 208 B AN K fE AR RE AT 8 %
t|j o
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 27.

(continued)

(b) Right of First Refusal Agreement with The Chinese
University of Hong Kong (continued)
The following table discloses the details of share
options granted pursuant to the Right of First Refusal
Agreement during the years ended 30 June 2010 and

2011:

27.

Exercise period

Date of grant

RFAH TEME

27 December 2008
to 26 June 2013

2008F 12 H27H =
20136 H26H

27 June 2008 (Note)
200846 A27H
(K=E)

Note:  Theexercise price and outstanding number of options
as at 1 July 2009 were retrospectively adjusted for
the share consolidation which became effective on
6 August 2009 and the share consolidation which

became effective on 21 January 2010.

28. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 28.
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company (comprising issued share capital, share premium,
share options reserve and accumulated losses).

Annual Report 2011 &3

Exercise price per share

URGBRER 2NRRZ (#)

(b) HEBPXARENELBEERG S
(&)
TRIFFEEZ2010%F K&20114%F6A30H
IFFERBELEEEREEL 2B

ddddd

Outstanding

as at 1 July 2009,

30 June 2010 and

30 June 2011
M2009F7H1H ~
20106 A30H K 20114F

BRITEE 6 H30H & K17

213,114
(Adjusted)
(@:8%)

MR2009F7R1A T TR EREZ
TEERRTERRESEER
7 5l 1200958 A6 8 K20105F1 A
21 BB ERKI IR G & GHE L B

A

EXmEERE
AEEEREERNERBETARBAFEL
2 R EARERRBARE 25 E B
RAGES AR R o 7N 5 B 2L 58 SR s A 45 858
EFEE—H

AEBZEAZEBRSFEE RERRE
FEARRNRBER AREER(BREET
A - BREDEE - BARERE R RETER)
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29. £@TH
29.1 Categories of financial instruments 291 ERITEMNEHR
Group
rER
As at As at
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
20114 720104
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
B IT BT
Financial assets TRIEE
Loans and receivables B & EW IR
(including cash and (BERERBESEE)
cash equivalents) 88,659,832 47,139,732
Fair value through LIERRIEAFEAR
profit or loss (BEEERE)
(Held-for-trading
investments) 30,086,292 38,543,793
Financial liabilities TRIBE
Amortized cost HESHACR 13,325,753 1,197,353
29.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 292 HIEEREEBEERBE
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial REBE 2 ZHAAZZRBYBER
risks: market risks (including foreign currency risk, % E (B HEINERE R - T = E R
interest rate risk and other price risks), credit risk and REMEERRE) EERR LTS
liquidity risk. The management has been monitoring e EREEAEERZERA
these risk exposures to ensure appropriate measures % AR BE RS B BUHEHEUEE 2
are implemented on a timely and effective manner so HHE - ARRERZERR -

as to mitigate or reduce such risks.

(a)  Foreign currency risk management (a) IIMEEBREE

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign RE B EERAR INE R B -
currency risk as most of its business transactions, LT BRRAHBDHIEER S -
assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong EERBEHABITEHE - K
Kong dollars. The Group currently does not SEIRRA ERINEE AR
have a formal foreign currency hedging policy. FoRMm EREEETEE
However, the management monitors foreign HNEE H IR T R R ZRE R
exchange exposure closely and will consider RERINEREEL SR -

hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
29.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
(b) Interest rate risk management

(c)

Annual Report 2011 &3

The Group has minimal exposure to interest
rate risk as the Group did not have any interest-
bearing liabilities at 30 June 2011. The Group
currently does not have a formal interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging the interest rate risk should
the need arise.

Other price risks

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
mainly through its investment in listed equity
securities and unlisted fund. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk and
return profiles.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period. If
equity prices had been 10% higher/lower (2010:
10% higher/lower) with all other variables held
constant, the consolidated loss after tax for the
year would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$3,009,000 (2010: decrease/increase by
HK$3,854,000) mainly due to the changes in
fair value of held-for-trading investments.

29.

EMI A
MBRREERBREE (D)

29.2

(b)

(c)

FIFREREE

R A% B R2011%6H308
WEFEMETE A E - Bt &
Z 2 FRRBRIRE - AEER
R 7 48 1F =X R EDRECR © A
i BEREGEENERER
WREFER @« ZREFEE
B {90 o

B EEE
ANEEEZFHBE FHRAFE
FRIEEMESIKEMASZRR
NEERERE - EIEE AR
B REHREE 2R EHEEER
LA o

SRR (BIE B Z T

LA RS ERE DT AR IR
HI R A B R R A EM
B WERANBERELN,
SR A210% (20104F = 3 A0 36
L10%)  MEMEZEFT
B KEERABREEEB
B 180 493,009,000 T
(20104 : JEi 2>,/ 3 hN3,854,000
BIL) TEHRBFEEER

BATERBFH -
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29.

100

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

29.2

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(d)

Credit risk management

As at 30 June 2011, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognized financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt and debt investment at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on
liquid funds which are deposited with several
banks with high credit ratings, the Group does
not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk.

29.

EMIT A
MBRREERBREE (D)

29.2

(d)

EERBEE

R2011F6H308 » BR 5
FREBTEEMEAEEZE
XM BEENASERSE
BERR - EEBREEHEIK
MEAMINSHEERSHE
ERREE -

BAERRER  AREEE
BEZR/ MR EERRE
AR (R IR 15 o M .20
B - o) - ARERGEH
R ERIE SRR
BRAOTREBE - SRR
BRI 0 BB TR 2 398
AERR © RUTE - AR
FFRAAEENHERARE
KD -

RBETHEERBRAER
RHHF REBBREEN K
BHRTRSEEFENRT -

BREBETREREZRAS
EEFRZBRTZRDES
oh - ARERARMEERR
=ERTOER
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
29.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
(e) Liquidity risk management

Annual Report 2011 &3

The Group'’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and long term.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to

pay.

As at 30 June 2011 R201156H30H

Non-derivative kTESHERS
financial liabilities

Trade and other payables & 5 R H bR

As at 30 June 2010

Non-derivative
financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

1201056 A30H
TESREE

29.

18

g5 R EMENRIA

EWMIE &)
29.2 UIBEREEEEREEE)

(e) MmBEZEBGEEE
AEBEZBRAERERRE
RERZRBESHR » N
RE AT R A RS R N R R
RBETFRZRDRHE

TRAMIIAREE R TIECT
£ R B ERREEERRN
BREEBER - ZRRIBEARE
BANFHRE RSN SREA
BERRUBREASRERS -

Group

rEE
On demand Total
or within undiscounted
one year cash flows
RERY RBERRSE
R—FR RERH

Total
carrying
amount

IREE#
HKS HKS HKS

BT BTT BTT

13,325,753 13,325,753 13,325,753

1,197,353 1,197,353 1,197,353
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

29.3 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid and ask
prices respectively.

The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models (e.g.
discounted cash flow analysis using observable
and/or unobservable inputs).

The fair values of derivative instruments are
calculated using quoted prices. Where such
prices are not available, a discounted cash flow
analysis is performed using the applicable yield
curve for the duration of the instruments for
non-optional derivatives, and option pricing
models for optional derivatives.

Management considers that the carrying amounts of

financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their
fair values.

102

SWMITAREE)

293 S@MIAEQATFE
TREENESRBEZATENET
PFIBEE

BEAREGRR RGN RN ER
mBMEEENEREERS
BEAE HOR2EmRBRT
LERENACEBREEAT
{I=I0

HtemEERSBAET
BREMTETR)ZRAFETIR
BERRAEERAEE (N
ERAEBELR, REEBRA
BABBNMRASRED
1) o

TETAZ A HETIARE
B o MARSHEERS - AIZE
HETETANNTRFHZ
AR ARETTRER ISR
DT - T EAREDT A T A RIA RS
BEERNETRRRRSRD
A7 ©

EEERA/NEEPBERRPARLZ
TREEMERABENEAEEELR
FERE -
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FINANCIAL
29.3

29.

Fair va

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

lue of financial instruments (continued)

Fair value measurements recognized in the

consolidated statement of financial position
Financial instruments that are measured subsequent
to initial recognition at fair value, are grouped into

Levels 1

to 3 based on the degree to which the fair

value is observable:

Annual Report 2011 &3

Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

Financial assets SREE
Held-for-trading FIEEBRE

investments

29.

Level 1

£-8&
HKS
BT

20,095,000

ERMIA#®

29.3

EMTAQNFEE)

REEH BRI EHERZ A FHEE

RUIFHERE BT REURFER
B UYRATFEAEERES/FE —

ZE=%-

Level 2
et
HKS
BT

9,991,292

F—RAFEFAETDADHR
EENEERNERMSHAR
wECRBE)E

FE_RRNFEFEDRE R
FRAZRES  BEELAE
A EZ(AMER)KEZE(BIK
BEBRITE)BERBABERS
o R

MR FENE AL
RIBAIE RN IS BER(ELE
RPARE)CEERARZ
REIDEGD -

Group
F&EE
Level 3
E=R
HKS
BT

= 30,086,292
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30. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 30. EBEH
Year ended 30 June 2011 B Z2011F6H30HLLFE
On 3 November 2010, the Group acquired 100% of the issued 7201011 A3 R - AREE Y Island Kingdom
share capital of Island Kingdom Company Limited and its Company Limited 2 H Kt B A 7l 2 2 2B E
subsidiaries for a cash consideration of HK$21,500,000. Island TR A - 3] & X8 521,500,000/ T © Island
Kingdom Group were engaged in the manufacturing and sale Kingdom#£s Bl S5 858 fe SHE B ©

of pharmaceutical products.

On 20 January 2011, the Group acquired 100% of the issued M2011F1 8208 » A~ & B W BE 55 M A 7
share capital of PR ASIA Consultants Limited for a cash ERAFBIZEHEEHTRA REREAR
consideration of HK$33,600,000. PR ASIA Consultants Limited 33,600,000/ 7T = TN ABEHER QB HEFIRMH
was engaged in provision of public relations services. NEARRTS o

Group
rEE
Island
Kingdom
PR ASIA Group

Consultants Island
Limited Kingdom Total
EMNABEERAR £6 “st
HKS HKS HKS
BIT BT BIT

Identifiable assets, liabilities and B UEE Z AT BIEE -
contingent liabilities acquired: BERKABE

Property, plant and equipment  ¥13 ~ [ MR 223,889 2,595,985 2,819,874
Inventories T8 - 5,464,649 5,464,649
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E A e R IE 2,715435 9,538,952 12,254,387
Cash and bank balances W& RIRTTHEETT 5,864,420 3,045,289 8,909,709
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMEFRIA (542,560)  (6,269,996)  (6,812,556)
Tax payable FERH1E (923,022) = (923,022)

7,338,162 14,374,879 21,713,041

Goodwill arising on acquisition — &{Z20114F6 A30H ILFE

during the year WHEEIREE 28

ended 30 June 2011 26,261,838 7,125,121 33,386,959
Cash consideration paid BERReRE 33,600,000 21,500,000 55,100,000
Net cash outflow WHEEHEE 2

arising on acquisition: R EFEE -
Cash consideration paid ENBRERE (33,600,000)  (21,500,000)  (55,100,000)
Cash and cash BEHERE &

equivalents acquired ReFEE 5,864,420 3,045,289 8,909,709

(27,735580)  (18454,711)  (46,190,291)
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30.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Year ended 30 June 2011 (continued)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$1,334,998 (the
Island Kingdom Group: HK$610,498; PR Asia: HK$724,500) have
been excluded from the consideration transferred and have
been recognized as an expense in the year, within the “other
operating expenses” line item in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Included in the loss for the year is loss of HK$4,071,884 and
profit of HK$2,608,831 attributable to the additional business
generated by the Island Kingdom Group and PR ASIA
respectively. Revenue for the year includes HK$24,888,123 in
respect of the Island Kingdom Group and HK$11,002,405 in
respect of PR ASIA.

Had these business combinations been effected at 1 July 2010,
the revenue of the Group would have been HK$71,590,279,
and the loss for the year would have been HK$3,235,177. The
directors of the company consider these pro-forma numbers
to represent an approximate measure of the performance of
the combined group on an annualized basis and to provide a
reference point for comparison in future periods.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of the Island Kingdom Group
and PR ASIA because the cost of the combination included
a control premium. In addition, the consideration paid for
the combination effectively included amounts in relation
to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth and
future market development of the Island Kingdom Group and
PR ASIA. These benefits are not recognized separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria
for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes.
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30.

¥¥attE)

HZE2011%F6 308 LEE(4E)

U BE AR R AK AN 51,334,998 7T (Island Kingdom
B 6104988 7T i TRM AR : 724,500/ T)
EEEEREFPIR  EERLEE2E KRS
KZHMEEER|HE NERBAFERA
35 o

REFEEE D BB HElsland Kingdom & B 2
TS E A 7 e E5184,071,88478 7T K g
N2 ¥ TS E & 2 FE AL % 512,608,831
TC ° REFZ WA B FEIsland KingdomE &34 &
224,888,123 7T Rk 2 N R B8 K2, 11,002,405
BT

Wz S XK AHR2010E781B £ % - BIAR
=B WA G A71,5902798 7T © RANFEE
B8 1% B3,2351778 70 - RABIEERAEZ
EEEYTHEAREFEENEVAHER
EECHBEAET B ARRPHAZ LEE
%2 o

HREFRANBEEGIERE - W
Island Kingdom®s B K2 il /A B2 A R ©
Lo - &P 2 EREERBIEHsland
Kingdom &= [ K 25 M A B8 2 78 B 173 [ Rk e

ZHg  WMABRRARRTIGERAH
T ARZFNE A AT BRI ELE

B HERFRE - AR E D FFER

B R EREETRELZAERTEAR
EER e
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EZE2011F6 A30R IEFE

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 31. HEWEAHE

Year ended 30 June 2010 B £2010F6H30H L FE

On 10 March 2010, the Group disposed of its entire equity 201063108 - AEE AR SKE10ET
interest in Jet Rich Investment Limited (“JRI") at a cash HEERNEEREERAR([EREE]D 2

consideration of HK$10. 2 ERPE A RERS o

R2010F4H8H » K £ B AR & K B
2,843,710 T HE E R R B RABEYIERE
FRAE([HFEBIRAZEYIER |) 2 2 502

o

On 8 April 2010, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest
in China Natural Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited
("CNPH") for a cash consideration of HK$2,843,710.

N3
FaN
T

CNPH
FEIRA

BwYER
HKS
BIT

Analysis of asset and liabilities BEAREEHIE . EE

106

of JRI and CNPH over
which control was lost:

A MR BRIAREEY)
EiRcBERBEDN

Other receivables At E Y IR - 2,500,000 2,500,000
Other payables H b fE (I 50E (10,680) (2,656,297) (2,666,977)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEaEFE (10,680) (156,297) (166,977)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEHE A Al 2 W zs 10,690 3,000,007 3,010,697
Cash consideration ReRE 10 2,843,710 2,843,720
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: & FIHEA 2 HEMAFE ¢

Cash consideration ReRE 10 2,843,710 2,843,720
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32.

OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessee
Atthe end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments

for future minimum leases payment under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

32.

REEY

REBEREBRA

RI|EHR - AEBRIE AT HEHO LS
WZAR T FI R B S 2 RIRFIEBE S IR
L

As at As at
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
120115 F20104F
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ B[S
B IT BT
Within one year —FR 7,622,000 =
In the second to fifth years inclusive ~ F_EZFAF(REEEMTF) 3,402,000 =
11,024,000 -
Operating lease payments represented rentals payable by the LERHRBEANEERERAEZTMER
Group for its office premises and retail shop. Leases were TEFEZHES  c HOARMREZHSIRM
negotiated and rentals were fixed for a term ranging from BE=FANE 2 FHRER o
two to three years.
The Group as lessor AEEEREHBEA

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$3,568,223 (2010: HKS$758,283). All of the Group's
investment properties are held for rental purposes. They are
expected to generate rental yields of approximately 4% on
an ongoing basis. One of the properties held has committed
tenants for one year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease

payments:

—FRN

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
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E_EFLF(BREEMF)

S R BT BRE 2 WD E T & IR 553,568,223 7T
(2010%F : 7582838 7L) - AEBZ A KRE
MELBIERERS - B EMERZE
EEN S EIRE - FREWEr—#E
—FEERP -

/

RBEHR  AEBEEBFATH - BEK
ERESMRAT :

As at As at

30 June 2011 30 June 2010
20115 720104
6A30H 6H30H

HK$ HKS

BT BIT
2,729,000 528,000
914,000 -
3,643,000 528,000
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BEALRS
The remuneration of directors and other members of key FA - BEERHEMFZERBAERZHMOT:

management during the year are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
HZ2011%F EZE2010%F
6A30H 6H30H
LHEE IEFE
HK$ HKS
BT SIT
Compensation of key FTEEB AR ZHM
management personnel
Short-term benefits 72 HA%E A 1,235,857 5,168,600
Post-employment benefits ROREE A 23,429 16,517

1,259,286 5185117
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34. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30
June 2011 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

HEARZR

Chemosino International Limited

Fairy Empire Investment Limited

EFRARRAA

China Universal Limited
ERARAT

Core Medical Technology Limited
ERERNEARAR

Healthy International Limited

ERERARAA

Hong Kong Genius Obstetrics
Service Consultancy
Company Limited

BRRLRERRARAR

Hong Kong Health
Management Limited

BARRERARAR

Hong Kong Hepatitis
Diagnostic Centre Limited

B AR LARAT

Annual Report 2011 &3

Place of incorporation/
operations and legal form
i/
EXMHRERRR

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

EERRES  ARRALR

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

ZRMBRES ARAMLT
Hong Kong, limited liability company

Bt ARAMALR

Hong Kong, limited fiability company
BE ARELAR

Hong Kong, limited fiability company
&% ARREAT

Hong Kong, limited fiability company
&% ARELAT

Hong Kong, limited fiability company
&% ARALAR

Hong Kong, limited liability company

Bk BREMLR

34. MIBAT

T -

Issued and fully
paid up share capital

BRTRARRE
Ordinary share USS1
e

Ordinary shares US$100
EERi0ET

Ordinary share HKS1
LERIAT

Ordinary shares HK$12,000,000
E8R12000000% 7

Ordinary shares HKS10,000
LaR100008T

Ordinary share HKS1
LakAT

Ordinary share HKS
LEmIET

Ordinary shares HK$100
ERR0ET

Proportion
ownership interest
held by the Company
YN

WRREAMM

100%
(Direct)
(E%)

100%
(Direct)
(E%)

100%

(Indirect)

(R%)

100%
(Indirect)
(E%)

100%

(Indirect)
(&)

100%
(Indirect)
(H%)

100%
(Indirect)
(i)

100%
(Indirect)
(%)

R2011F6A308 » RAREZEWNEQRFE

Principal activities

IEXE

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

RERK

Property investment

VESIES

Provision of diagnostic testing
services and products and related
research and development,
and property investment

REIEHTRERER -
RARETR SR -
ST

Trading of health products and
investment holding
RemE5  RREAR

Provision of consultancy services
R AR

Provision of diagnostic testing services
and products and related marketing
promotion services

REDEHT RSk ER -
NRAEE AR R

Provision of diagnostic testing services
relating to certain liver diseases

REATIRZVHAARS
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34. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAAER

Next Dimension
Advertising Limited
SERRSERAA

PR ASIA Consultants Limited

SHARERAT

South West Securities
and Futures Limited

EEER R EERAT

Superb Yield Limited

Talent Vision Limited

Vida Laboratories Limited

Place of incorporation/
operations and legal form
R/
EXUBREEER

Hong Kong, limited fiability company
&% AREMAR

Hong Kong, limited fiability company
&% BREAAR

Hong Kong, limited liability company
&% BREMAT

Hong Kong, limited liability company
&% ARERAA

Hong Kong, limited fiability company
&% AREMAR

Hong Kong, limited liability company

34. MIBRT(#)

BEEEERAT 55 BRREAT

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, results in particular of
excessive length.

35. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 35.
Acquisition of property
Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the Group
completed the acquisition of an investment property from
an independent third party at a cash consideration of
HKS$15,500,000 on 15 August 2011,

110

Proportion
Issued and fully ownership interest
paid up share capital held by the Company  Principal activities
AR
BRARARRE KEEREA  EEER
Ordinary shares HK$100 100%  Provision of advertising and
LERI005T (Indirect) public relations services
() REESROBRE
Ordinary shares HKS100 100%  Provision of public relations services
LERI0BT (ndiect) — REABRE
(%)
Ordinary shares HK$30,000,000 100%  Dealing in securities, futures contracts
LER3000000037 (Indirect) and advising on Corporate Finance
(B BEEH HEa0
FarEREREER
Ordinary share HKS1 100%  Property Investment
LERIAT (ndiect) ~ WERE
(%)
Ordinary share HKS1 100%  Property investment
LRkIAT (ndirect) ~ WIERE
(F%)
Ordinary shares HK$620,000 100%  Manufacturing, trading and packaging
LRR620 00087 (Indirect) in pharmaceutical products

(BR) ZaRE 25RER

ERBEZEER  RERINEHAEEERE
REERBEAFEZASENBLRRA &%
B HIHEME AR ZFAE RS EH
EREBNITR ©

WEMBREE

d-TyE 3

RBEBRE - AEBR20119F8 5158 5EMK
M — R = 75 AR £ R {E15,500,000% 7T
Wi — TR EYE o
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Five-year Financial Summary

EFMBEHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

RESULTS

Revenue

(Loss)/Profit for the year

attributable to owners

of the Company

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets/(liabilities)
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LN

AREHEBA
BEARER
(&1R), A

EERAE

\
A

SN

cRt

\

A
o

S
cR

N
¥
= X
m
i

Year ended 30 June
EZ6A30HILEE

2010
HKS

78TT

2009
HKS

BT

AEENBEREVREENEE R EERAERE
IO

41,903,291 4,704,192 4,889,627 1,597,086 1,297,939

(4,443,433)| (1,456,005 312418956 (360,924,850) 8,396,386

307,525,449 | 147,503,961 91,738439 230,191,063 40,793,543

18,210,862 1,561,002 1,883,786 493,149,437 2,738,165

289,314,587 | 145942959 89,854,653 (262,958374)  38,055378
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Particulars of Major Investment Properties
TEREMEZHE

As at 30 June 2011
7201146 A30H

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT BEREZWE
Location Type Lease term
wE gl HEHR

Shop Nos. 4, 53, 54, 56 and 57 on Ground Floor of Commercial Centre,

Fullview Garden, No. 18 Siu Sai Wan Road, Hong Kong
NN

Shop No. G12, Ground Floor, Commercial Podium,
Sincere House, No. 83 Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong

FENEREZEIRAMAER S NG125% 5

Shop Nos. G27 and G28, Ground Floor, Commercial Podium,
Sincere House, No.83 Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BN R ZHM T AE R S N G627 KG285k &

Shop G21, Ground Floor, Grandway Garden, No. 16 Mei Tin Road
and Nos. 15 and 35 Tsuen Nam Road, Shatin, New Territories

AL BEEHE 165 R R 15 R 3558 B =B T G155 4
Unit 1210A, 12th Floor, Champion Building, 301-309 Nathan Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

BN ERBUE301-3095R R B EAE1221210AF

Public Carpark Nos. P101-P150 together with Shroff’s Office,

First Floor, Citimark, No. 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin, New Territories

#50 BRIEE 285 & 2 E5P101-P1505%
NHEEMBE R —ZUERER

PROPERTY HELD FOR OWN USE

Location

&
Unit 1210A, 12th Floor, Champion Building, 301-309 Nathan Road,

Kowloon, Hong Kong
BB NRERFUE301-309 R E B E RE 12/81210AF

112

185 = = P I N 45% © 535% - 5455 © 565k R 575R A

Non-residential use
FEEERE
Non-residential use
EEERE
Non-residential use
FEEAB
Non-residential use
FEERE
Non-residential use
FEERE
Non-residential use

FEERB

FERR 2

Type
5!

Non-residential use

FEEERE

Medium-term lease

RHIEE

Long-term lease

REIEE

Long-term lease

REHEE

Medium-term lease

RHIEE

Long-term lease

REIEE

Medium-term lease

RHIEE

Lease term

HEHR

Long-term lease

REHEE

China Natural Investment Company Limited B X R IREBR LA &
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